
Development Control B 
Committee
Agenda

Date:      Wednesday, 21 December 2016
Time:      2.00 pm
Venue:   The Council Chamber - City Hall, College 
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:
Councillors: Harriet Clough, Mike Davies, Carla Denyer, Richard Eddy, Martin Fodor, 
Margaret Hickman, Sultan Khan, Olly Mead, Celia Phipps, Kevin Quartley and Afzal Shah

Copies to: Zoe Willcox (Service Director - Planning), Gary Collins, Laurence Fallon, Rachael Dando, 
Steve Gregory (Democratic Services Officer) and Allison Taylor (Democratic Services Officer)

Issued by: Allison Taylor, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 22883
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Tuesday, 13 December 2016

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Development Control B Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda.

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not on the register of 
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

3. Minutes of the previous meeting 
To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record. (Pages 4 - 10)

4. Appeals 
To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision. (Pages 11 - 19)

5. Enforcement 
To note enforcement notices. (Page 20)

6. Public forum 
Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item.



Development Control B Committee – Agenda

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum.  The 
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at 
the back of this agenda.  Public Forum items should be emailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines 
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the 
meeting.  For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in 
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 15 December 2016.

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  For this meeting this means that your 
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 20 
December 2016.

Please note, your time allocated to speak may have to be strictly limited if 
there are a lot of submissions. This may be as short as one minute.

7. Planning and Development 
To consider the following applications for Development Control Committee B - 

a) 15/04217/F - Land to North of Paintworks, BS4 3EH

b) 16/01266/F - Land between Ladies Mile and Clifton Down, 
Bridge Valley Road, BS8

c) 16/02046/F - 8 and 8B, Chandos Road, Bristol, BS6 6PE

d) 16/04539/F - Westerleigh Cottage, Cote Drive, Bristol, BS9 
3UP

e) 16/04684/H - 2, Callington Road, Bristol, BS4 5BW

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Development Control B Committee

9 November 2016 at 6.00 pm

Members Present:-
Councillors: Harriet Clough, Mike Davies, Carla Denyer, Richard Eddy, Martin Fodor, Olly Mead, 
Kevin Quartley and Afzal Shah

Officers in Attendance:-
Gary Collins and Allison Taylor (Democratic Services Officer)

1. Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information

2. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Margaret Hickman, Celia Phipps and Sultan Khan.

3. Declarations of Interest

None.

4. Minutes of the previous meeting

The Committee agreed to the following amendments:-

Minute 13 - Avonbank, Feeder Road, Page 8, Bullet Point 1, 2nd line – add ‘two aspects of’ before 
‘the noise assessment’. Add ‘:’ after ‘diesel engines’ Delete ‘and the’ before ‘tonality’. 3rd Line 
delete ‘in’ and add ‘and the likely additional noise at’ before ‘start-up and shut-down’. 6th line, 
add ‘nor start-up noise’ after ‘did not cover tonality’.

Minute 13 - 2, Southernhay Avenue, Page 13, Bullet Point 5, 2nd line, add ‘for use by the resident 
of this property’ after ‘retained’.

Subject to these amendments, the Minutes were agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

5. Appeals

The Representative of the Service Director – Planning drew the Committee’s attention to:-

 Item 2, 11 – 13, Queens Road, which was an on-going appeal for and A1 use to A 3 use 
and was also the subject of an application on this agenda. The Committee were 
informed that should the application before the Committee be granted, it was for the 
applicant to decide whether to withdraw the on-going appeal due to a change in 
circumstances. The Committee should not have regard to this in their decision-making;

 Item 4 – Fishponds Road, McDonalds Restaurant. The Public Inquiry was due to start 
yesterday but the applicant’s Barrister had become ill. Alternative dates were now 
being considered and it was now likely that the period of the Inquiry would be longer, 
potentially 7/8 days.

6. Enforcement

The Committee was advised there were no updates for this meeting. 

7. Public Forum

Members of the Committee received public forum statements in advance of the meeting. 

The Statements were heard before the application they related to and were taken fully into 
consideration by the Committee prior to reaching a decision. (A copy of the public forum list and 
statements are held on public record by Democratic Services). 

8. Planning and Development

The Committee considered the following reports of the Service Director, Planning -

(1) 16/03185/F - 11 – 13, Queens Road.

An Amendment Sheet was provided to the committee in advance of the meeting, detailing 
changes since the publication of the original report.

The Representative of the Service Director – Planning commented as follows:-

Page 5



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The application was for a change of use from A1 retail outlet to a mixed A1/A3 coffee shop 
use. The site forms part of the Queens Road and Park Street primary shopping area and 
frontage as identified in the Central Area Plan. It currently traded as a charity shop;

 An application for change of use to an A3 restaurant was refused under delegated powers 
in September 2015 and an appeal was due to be heard at the end of November 2016;

 Objections were received from three local amenity groups whose primary concern was that 
the area had gone beyond the tipping point with respect to food and drink outlets;

 Officers had assessed the objections, local plan policies and recent appeals and concluded 
that on balance the proposals preserved the retail function and contributed to the vitality 
and viability of the primary shopping area and frontage. The proposals were also 
acceptable in terms of amenity and highway safety and it was therefore recommended for 
grant subject to conditions.

The following comments arose from debate:-

 With respect to seating on the highway outside the building, officers were confident that a 
3m wide pavement could be maintained. There was no application for A Boards, although 
it was noted that this was an issue across the city and needed careful attention in this area. 
He was confident that enforcement and Streetscene officers would deal with such matters 
quickly in this area;

  It was noted that a condition prevented any boundary or screening around the tables and 
chairs;

 Councillor Mead was satisfied with the proposals and moved the officer recommendation 
and this was seconded by Councillor Eddy.

On being put to the vote it was unanimously:-

RESOLVED - that permission be granted subject to the Conditions and Advice(s) in the report and 
the Amendment sheet.

(2) 16/03774/F – Police Dog & Horse Training Centre, Clanage Road, Bower Ashton.

An Amendment Sheet was provided to the committee in advance of the meeting, detailing 
changes since the publication of the original report.

The Representative of the Service Director – Planning commented as follows:-

 The applicants, the Caravan club, were currently based on land at Baltic Wharf which was 
owned by the Council who wished to sell the land;

 The proposed site was on the busy A369 and could be accessed by public transport serving 
Bower Ashton Campus;

Page 6



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The site adjoined the Ashton Court registered historic park and garden and was an 
important green buffer zone from the city;

 The site was in Flood Zone 3 which meant there was a high probability of flooding and had 
the Environment Agency had objected on that basis;

 Objections were also received from highways as there was poor visibility at the access and 
slow moving, heavy vehicles would present a danger on a busy road;

 The Coal Authority had submitted a late objection as the assessment provided did not 
meet their requirements;

 The Committee were asked to assess whether the special circumstances cited by the 
applicant to justify an exemption to established green belt policy, ie. a lack of alternative 
sites outweighed the harm caused.

The following points arose from debate:-

 It was noted that the Baltic Wharf site was also in Flood Zone 3 but the application site  
would also experience water coming down the hill which was an additional threat;

 Councillor Mead believed it was short sighted for the Council to sell the Baltic Wharf site if 
it was in a Flood Risk Zone as it seemed unlikely that anybody else would want it. The Chair 
noted that the Council had previously decided against a school on the site due to flood risk. 
The Representative of the Service Director – Planning reported that a planning application 
was not submitted for the school as it was the wrong side of the docks to serve the 
children it was intended for and would therefore require parents to drive there. The 
rationale for selling the site was to realise the value of property assets in light of the 
challenging financial situation the Council was in. He added that new applications in a 
regeneration area would benefit from the sequential test and a more relaxed view would 
be taken in planning policy terms if a suitable flood evacuation plan was in place and the 
Environmental Agency were content. Finally, he emphasised the need for the Committee 
to consider what was before them and not why it was before them;

 Councillor Mead asked whether a signalled junction could mitigate the highway concerns 
and was informed that the fundamental concern was that large vehicles would not be able 
to pull out quickly enough onto a very busy road;

 It was noted that the adjacent site had experienced flooding in recent years. The main 
concern for this site was that caravans were extremely vulnerable in a flood risk area as 
they would be washed away in a flash storm. It was made clear to the Committee that an 
abrupt flood could result in loss of life and there were no mitigations to sufficiently 
alleviate the risk;

 The Representative of the Service Director – Planning was unclear with respect to the 
Council’s legal obligation to find the Caravan Club a new site though he was aware that 
there had been an extensive site search. He advised the Committee to focus on whether 
the benefits of the Caravan Club to the local economy and the lack of alternative options 
outweighed the significant issues of concern;

Page 7



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The Chair observed that the applicants having extensively searched believed that this site 
met their needs and it appeared there was a focus on the issues of concern rather than the 
benefits to the applicant;

 Councillor Mead asked whether it was possible to approve with a pre-commencement 
condition regarding further investigation of the flood risk and if unsurmountable the 
application be rejected. He was informed that there were four reasons officers had 
recommended refusal and two of them were fundamental. Any permission in Greenbelt 
land would have to go before the Secretary of State for consideration as it was so contrary 
to policy. Officer’s interpretation of Greenbelt policy was that this was not an appropriate 
development in the Greenbelt. Similarly, a sustained Environment Agency objection on the 
grounds of flood risk would also need to go before the Secretary of State. Had it been 
possible to include a condition to overcome these fundamental issues, officers would not 
have recommended refusal;

 The Chair observed that a Caravan Club development seemed an appropriate one for 
Green Belt land; 

 Councillor Denyer agreed noting that there was now acceptance of the use of Green Belt 
land for housing provision. However, she was minded to accept the officer 
recommendation on the flood risk reason alone;

 Councillor Eddy stated there was a moral responsibility for the Council to find the Caravan 
Club a satisfactory home. He was not convinced on most of the grounds for refusing but 
accepted that the flood risk was substantial and would therefore support the officer 
recommendation to refuse. He also proposed that this Committee urge the Cabinet and 
Mayor to put more resources and proper attention to finding a permanent home for the 
Caravan Club and this be formalised into a recommendation. 

 Councillor Shah gave weight to the significant contribution the Caravan Club made to the 
local economy but shared concerns regarding flood risk and would therefore vote to 
refuse. He supported the additional recommendation;

 The Representative of the Service Director – Planning suggested that the Committee 
recommend that officers write to relevant Place Service Directors asking them to assist the 
Caravan Club in finding a new site;

 Councillor Denyer moved the recommendation along with the additional recommendation 
and this was seconded by Councillor Clough.

On being put to the vote it was unanimously:-
 
RESOLVED – 

1. That permission be refused;
2. That officers write to the relevant Service Directors – Place asking them to assist the Caravan 
Club in finding a new site.

Page 8



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

(3) 16/03832/F and 16/03833/F – 112, Coombe Lane.

An Amendment Sheet was provided to the committee in advance of the meeting, detailing 
changes since the publication of the original report.

The Representative of the Service Director – Planning commented as follows:-

 The applications  had been referred to Committee by the local ward member;
 The site was located on the junction of Coombe Lane and Canford Lane and the area was 

made up mostly of houses within large garden plots. There had been some development in 
the area with properties being built within large gardens. There were also some extant 
permissions;

 There were two trees in the corner of the site with TPO’s but they were not affected by the 
proposals;

 The first application was to demolish the bungalow and build a six-bedroom dwelling, 
garage and driveway. The access would be widened to 3.5m with lane at 3m;

 The second application was the same as the first application with the addition of a second 
dwelling to the rear and the access widened to 4.1m with lane at 3.5m;

 The second application would require the junction to be rearranged so as to narrow it thus 
making it slower and tactile crossings would be provided;

 A swept paths assessment had been undertaken;
 The key issues arising from consultation relating to the second application was that the 

house and garden was now visible from the street and there was intervisibility between 
houses. The other issues were access and trees;

 Officers recommended approval of both applications subject to conditions set out in the 
report.


The following points arose from debate:-

 The developer would most likely apply for self-build CIL exemption but this could not 
happen until permission was granted and this was within regulations;

 Councillor Eddy proposed that a condition be imposed requiring the developer to pay 
£5000 of CIL to the Neighbourhood Partnership for the cost of a pedestrian refuge island. 
He believed this was a reasonable requirement and an appropriate mitigation. In response 
he was informed that CIL could only be used for strategic infrastructure and NP’s were 
entitled to 15% of a contribution. It was not reasonable to ask for more. It was appropriate 
to tighten up the junction for the two-dwelling application but beyond that it was not 
proportionate or reasonable although the Committee might take its own view;

  The Chair noted that the  NP had expressed concerns about the junction but not done 
anything about it;

 It was noted that the Swept path Assessment had shown that buses, including double- 
deckers could make the manoeuvre. This assessment included buses coming in both 
directions;

Page 9



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 It was noted that a condition was proposed to give adequate screening with the laurel 
hedge for neighbours and this would be undertaken as soon as the next planning season 
started;

 Councillor Mead was unconvinced by the second application;
 Councillor Eddy confirmed that he felt it was not unreasonable to insist that the developer 

contribute £5000 for a pedestrian refuge island. He did not believe the applications should 
be refused but would abstain if this condition was not imposed. The Representative of the 
Service Director – Planning advised that the Committee could grant as per the 
recommendation and in addition a condition requiring the provision of a pedestrian refuge 
at the junction (or amend the existing condition 7 requiring highway works);

 Councillor Eddy moved the recommendations for both applications subject to an additional 
condition on the second application requiring the developer to provide a pedestrian refuge 
island as part of the highway works via an amendment to recommended condition 7. This 
was seconded by Councillor Mead.

On being put to the vote, it was unanimously:-

RESOLVED - 

1. That the first application (one dwelling) be granted subject to Conditions and Advice in the 
report and the Amendment Sheet.
2. that the second application (two dwellings) be granted subject to Conditions and Advice in 
the report and the Amendment Sheet and an additional amendment to condition 7 requiring a 
pedestrian refuge island.

9. Additional information relating to Agenda Item 8.

Meeting ended at 7.45pm

CHAIR  __________________

Page 10



REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR - PLANNING

LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
21 December 2016

 

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Householder appeal

Date lodged

Text0:1 Windmill Hill 3 Haverstock Road Bristol BS4 2DA 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Retrospective planning application for dormer window in rear 
roof slope.

25/11/2016

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Informal hearing

Date of hearing

Text0:2 Cabot 11 - 13 Queens Road Clifton Bristol BS8 1QE 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Change of use from a retail unit (Use Class A1) to cafe or 
restaurant (Use Class A3).

29/11/2016

Text0:3 Cotham 16 Clyde Road Redland Bristol BS6 6RP 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Copper Beech - fell. (Tree protected by Tree preservation 
Order 1283).

07/12/2016

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Public inquiry

Date of inquiry

Text0:4 Eastville 541-551 Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 3AF 

Committee

Appeal against refusal

Demolition of existing warehouse and erection of a 
freestanding two storey restaurant with associated basement, 
drive-thru, car parking and landscaping. Installation of 2 no. 
customer order display and canopy.

20/04/2017

Page 1 of 909 December 2016 Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Written representation

Date lodged

Text0:5 Frome Vale 46 Field View Drive Bristol BS16 2TT 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Horse chestnut - Reduce crown by 30%. Removal of 
deadwood and Ivy. Remove two large branches overhanging 
the footpath. TPO 379

23/03/2016

Text0:6 Easton 420 Stapleton Road Easton Bristol BS5 6NQ 

Committee

Appeal against refusal

Removal of the existing advertising and replace with one free 
standing digital adverting board (5m x 7.5m)and one wall 
mounted digital advertising board (14m x 3.5m) with 
associated logo boxes.

08/06/2016

Text0:7 Ashley 39A Shaftesbury Avenue Bristol BS6 5LT 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Retention of the re-roofing of rear (east facing) roof slope 
with metal sheeting.

13/06/2016

Text0:8 Ashley 39A Shaftesbury Avenue Bristol BS6 5LT 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

An appeal against and Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on the 26 April 2016 for an alleged breach of 
planning: Without the benefit of planning permission, the 
cladding of the eastern roof slope with metal sheet cladding.

15/08/2016

Text0:9 Westbury-on-Trym Southmead Police Station Southmead Road Bristol BS10 
5DW 

Committee

Appeal against refusal

Demolition of the existing police station buildings and 
redevelopment of the site to provide a care home (Use Class 
C2), associated access, car parking and landscaping and the 
conversion of an existing building fronting Southmead Road 
to provide a single dwelling (Use Class C3).

26/08/2016

Text0:10 Westbury-on-Trym 9B Etloe Road Bristol BS6 7PG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed roof extension to former additional living 
accommodation.

06/09/2016

Page 2 of 909 December 2016 Page 12



Text0:11 Clifton 19 Royal York Crescent Bristol BS8 4JY 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Addition to the existing single storey element; external wall 
insulation and associated works to existing eaves, sill and 
windows reveals, and installation of double glazed lights and 
doors.

15/09/2016

Text0:12 Clifton 19 Royal York Crescent Bristol BS8 4JY 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Addition to the existing single storey extension;  external wall 
insulation and associated works to existing eaves, sill and 
windows reveals, and installation of double glazed lights and 
doors; and associated internal structural and refurbishment 
works.

15/09/2016

Text0:13 Brislington East Church Hill House Church Hill Bristol BS4 4LT 

Appeal against refusal

Replacement windows. 23/09/2016

Text0:14 Brislington East Church Hill House Church Hill Bristol BS4 4LT 

Appeal against refusal

Renew the top floor (roof) windows. 23/09/2016

Text0:15 Clifton 11 Hope Square Bristol BS8 4LX 

Appeal against high hedge

Appeal against a high hedge blocking light and view on 
boundary with No. 12.

29/09/2016

Text0:16 Clifton East 68 Alma Vale Road Bristol BS8 2HR 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed change from Use Class C3 (dwelling house) to 
Use Class 4 HMO (House in Multiple Occupation).

17/10/2016

Text0:17 Clifton Down 19A Whatley Road Bristol BS8 2PS 

Appeal against refusal

Replace the front elevation, lower ground floor/ basement 
level timber sash windows with UPVC sash windows

18/10/2016

Page 3 of 909 December 2016 Page 13



Text0:18 Brislington West 35 Braikenridge Road Bristol BS4 3SW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Notification of prior approval for the erection of a single storey 
rear extension that would extend beyond the rear wall of the 
original house by 6 metres, have a maximum height of 2.7 
metres and have eaves that are 2.5 metres high

20/10/2016

Text0:19 Central 86 - 88 Broadmead Bristol BS1 3DW 

Appeal against refusal

Installation of an ATM. 21/10/2016

Text0:20 Central 86 - 88 Broadmead Bristol BS1 3DW 

Appeal against refusal

1 no. non-illuminated ATM surround sign. 21/10/2016

Text0:21 Bedminster 40 Winterstoke Road Bristol BS3 2NW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replacement of existing non-illuminated display with 
internally illuminated backlight display,

21/10/2016

Text0:22 Ashley 52 Picton Street Bristol BS6 5QA 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for the installation of an external 
roller shutter and associated shutter housing structure to the 
front of the property.

08/11/2016

Text0:23 Eastville 668 Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 3HJ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Change of use from Class A1 (shop) to Class A3/A5 
(restaurant/hot food takeway).

21/11/2016

Text0:24 Hotwells & Harbour 1 Cathedral Square Bristol BS1 5TP 

Appeal against refusal

Application for consent to display one halo illuminated sign. 25/11/2016

Text0:25 Lawrence Hill 199 Avonvale Road Bristol BS5 9SR 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Two storey rear extension. 25/11/2016

Page 4 of 909 December 2016 Page 14



Text0:26 Frome Vale Rockwood House Frenchay Road Bristol BS16 2RA 

Appeal against refusal

Demolition of detached garage and construction of new build 
detached dwelling with improved access onto highway.

25/11/2016

Text0:27 Clifton 4 & 5 Dover Place Cottages Bristol BS8 1AN  

Appeal against refusal

Conversion of a basement/storage area into 2 no. studio flats 
and associated external and internal works.

29/11/2016

Text0:28 Clifton 4 & 5 Dover Place Cottages Bristol BS8 1AN

Appeal against refusal

Conversion of a basement/storage area into 2 no. studio flats 
and associated external and internal works.

29/11/2016

Text0:29 Central 3-8 Redcliffe Parade West Bristol BS1 6SP

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Application for variation of condition 13 attached to planning 
permission 15/04495/F, which approved the refurbishment, 
including 1970s extension, to provide 30 new homes with 
associated landscaping and car/cycle parking, in order to limit 
the size of the proposed privacy screens to a height of "at 
least 1.5m" above the balcony finished floor levels (Major 
Application).

29/11/2016

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

List of appeal decisions

Decision and 
date decided

Text0:30 Southville 1 Lock Lane Bedminster BS3 1BZ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Change of use from commercial use to domestic (residential) 
use.

Appeal dismissed

11/11/2016

Text0:31 Southville 1 Lock Lane Bedminster Bristol BS3 1BZ 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 02.03.2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without the grant of planning permission the change of use 
of the property from a commercial unit to a residential dwelling

Appeal dismissed

11/11/2016

Page 5 of 909 December 2016 Page 15



Text0:32 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Text0:33 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Text0:34 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Text0:35 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Text0:36 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Page 6 of 909 December 2016 Page 16



Text0:37 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Text0:38 Clifton Trinity House Kensington Place Bristol BS8 3AH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 17 March 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without planning permission, the re-modelling of existing 
dwelling to include basement and rear extension without 
complying with conditions 4 and 5 of the planning permission 

  number13/01376/H. 

11/11/2016

Appeal Dismissed

Text0:39 Ashley 147 Mina Road Bristol BS2 9YF 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replacement of existing brickwork stores building at the rear 
of no.147 Mina Road with a one bedroom flat located above 
retained stores on ground floor below.

Appeal dismissed

21/10/2016

Text0:40 Brislington West 40 Churchill Road Bristol BS4 3RW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed one bedroom dwelling accommodated within 
existing outbuilding.

Appeal dismissed

23/11/2016

Text0:41 Clifton East Rear Of 98 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2QY 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Change of use of existing store to 'sui generis' student studio 
apartment with associated provision of refuse and cycle 
storage and roof light.

Appeal dismissed

19/10/2016

Text0:42 Redland 6 Northumberland Road Bristol BS6 7AU 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

An appeal against an Enforcement Notice issued by the City 
Council on 9th June 2016 for an alleged breach of planning: 
Without the benefit of planning permission, the removal of a 
1.2 metre wide section of the front boundary wall at 6 
Northumberland Road, Bristol BS6 7AU.

Appeal dismissed

09/11/2016

Page 7 of 909 December 2016 Page 17



Text0:43 Clifton Haberfield House Hotwell Road Bristol BS8 4NH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Conversion of vacant loft accommodation to create 6 two 
bedroom flats. Associated internal and external alterations 
including provision of new dormer windows and rooflights.

Appeal dismissed

24/11/2016

Text0:44 Clifton Haberfield House Hotwell Road Bristol BS8 4NH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed works in relation to conversion of vacant loft 
accommodation to create 6 two bedroom flats. Conversion of 
vacant loft accommodation to create 6 two bedroom flats. 
Associated internal and external alterations including 
provision of new dormer windows and rooflights.

Appeal dismissed

24/11/2016

Text0:45 Clifton 1A Ambra Vale Bristol  

Appeal against refusal

Change of the ground floor car park and storage area to 
purpose-built student accommodation (Use Class Sui 
generis) together with associated external alterations.

Appeal dismissed

24/11/2016

Costs not awarded

Text0:46 Lawrence Hill The Old Exchange Clarence Road St Philips Bristol BS2 0NR 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of two dwelling houses.

Appeal dismissed

24/11/2016

Text0:47 Hartcliffe & Withyw 1 Randolph Avenue Bristol BS13 9PG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed new dwelling on land to rear of 1 Randolph.

Appeal dismissed

30/11/2016

Text0:48 Hillfields Land Rear Of 15 Worcester Close Bristol BS16 3PW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed 2 no.semi-detached three bedroom houses.

Appeal dismissed

27/10/2016

Text0:49 Easton 66 Carlyle Road Bristol BS5 6HH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Notification of prior approval for the erection of a single storey 
rear extension that would extend beyond the rear wall of the 
original house by 5 metres, have a maximum height of  2.5 
metres and have eaves that are 2.5 metres high.

Appeal dismissed

28/10/2016

Page 8 of 909 December 2016 Page 18



Text0:50 Kingsweston Land Adjacent To 3 Westbury Lane Bristol BS9 2PD 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of dwelling with associated access from Westbury 
Lane.

Appeal dismissed

29/11/2016

Text0:51 Brislington West 830 - 840 Bath Road Brislington Bristol BS4 5LQ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed 4 no. fascia signs and 2no. freestanding signs 
(illuminated and non-illuminated).

Appeal allowed

01/12/2016

Text0:52 Clifton 4 Mortimer Road Bristol BS8 4EX 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Change of use of dwelling into two maisonettes.

Appeal dismissed

07/12/2016

Text0:53 Redland 52 Clarendon Road Bristol BS6 7ET 

Appeal against refusal

Formation of new off-street parking space with bin store.

Appeal dismissed

16/11/2016

Text0:54 Ashley 13 Wathen Road Bristol BS6 5BY 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Retention of roof extension, and two-storey and single-storey 
rear extension.

Appeal allowed

01/12/2016

Text0:55 Westbury-on-Trym 68 Linden Road Westbury Park Bristol BS6 7RR

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Retrospective application to replace existing porch and 
staircase with a balcony and new staircase.

Appeal dismissed

25/11/2016

Text0:56 Central Templeback 10 Temple Back Bristol BS1 6FL 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Double-sided projecting, non-illuminated banner sign made of 
stainless steel, to which vinyl letters ('10 TEMPLE BACK') will 
be applied.

Appeal allowed

08/12/2016

Page 9 of 909 December 2016 Page 19



 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B 

21 December 2016 
 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR - PLANNING 
 

LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED 
 
 
 
Item Ward Address, description and enforcement type Date issued 

 
No items to report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9 December 2016 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



S:\PLAN\Plan-Common\Dev Control Committees\2016-2017\Committee B\21 Dec 16 (2pm)\Index.docx 
 12/12/2016  11:09 

 
 

Development Control Committee B 
21 December 2016 

Report of the Service Director - Planning 

 
Index 
 
Planning Applications 
 
Item Ward Officer 

Recommendation 
Application No/Address/Description 
 

    
1 Brislington 

West 
Grant subject to 
Legal Agreement 

15/04217/F - Land To North Paintworks Bristol 
BS4 3EH   
Demolition of Endemol building and partial 
demolition of Building Six; erection of new 
buildings of 4-8 storeys with underground car 
parking to provide up to 1769 sqm of 
employment floor space (Use Class B1), 
including 188sqm of flexible floor space (Use 
Classes A1, A3 and B1); 92no dwellings (Use 
Class C3); new open car park, public open 
space and associated landscaping. (Major 
Application) 
 

    
2 Stoke Bishop Refuse 16/01266/F - Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton 

Down Bridge Valley Road Bristol BS8    
Proposed pedestrian/cycle bridge over Bridge 
Valley Road. 
 

    
3 Cotham Grant 16/02046/F - 8 & 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 

6PE    
Works to ground floor to create a store and wc 
for existing retail unit and conversion of part 
ground and basement to a C3 residential 
dwelling with associated external alterations, car 
and cycle parking and refuse storage. 
 

    
4 Westbury-on-

Trym & 
Henleaze 

Grant 16/04539/F - Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive 
Bristol BS9 3UP   
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 
replacement dwelling. 
 

    
5 Brislington 

West 
Grant 16/04684/H - 2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW    

Proposed double garage and granny annexe 
following demolition of existing double garage. 
 

    

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



12/12/16  11:20   Committee report 

 

Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
 

 
ITEM NO.  1 
 

 
WARD: Brislington West CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Westbury 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
15/04217/F 
 

 
Full Planning 

EXPIRY DATE: 3 December 2015 
 

Demolition of Endemol building and partial demolition of Building Six; erection of new buildings of 
4-8 storeys with underground car parking to provide up to 1769 sqm of employment floor space 
(Use Class B1), including 188sqm of flexible floor space (Use Classes A1, A3 and B1); 92no 
dwellings (Use Class C3); new open car park, public open space and associated landscaping. 
(Major Application) 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Grant Subject To Planning Agreement 

 
AGENT: 

 
CSJ Planning Consultants Ltd 
1 Host Street 
Bristol 
BS1 5BU 
 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Verve Properties Ltd 
Please Use Agent 
 

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

  
DO NOT SCALE 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7a



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

    
1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 This application is brought to Committee on account of the amount of representations received 
from local residents and the importance of this application proposal for the completion of the 
Paintworks development and the future of the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone.   

 
1.2 It is an application for full planning permission for the demolition of Endemol building and 

partial demolition of Building Six; erection of new buildings of 4-8 storeys with underground car 
parking to provide up to 1769 sqm of employment floor space (Use Class B1), including 
188sqm of flexible floor space (Use Classes A1, A3 and B1); 92no dwellings (Use Class C3); 
new open car park, public open space and associated landscaping. 

 
1.3 This is the fourth phase of the redevelopment of the site which is collectively known as the 

Paintworks site. The third phase of this development including demolition of buildings on the 
site and the erection of new buildings of 2-7 storeys built on top of new undercroft car park to 
provide employment floor space (B1); Retail floor space (A1, A3 & A4); up to 11 live/work 
units; and up to 210 residential units (C3); with revised vehicular access off Bath Road was 
approved in 2014 and is currently under construction. 

 
1.4 It is helpful to regard this application proposal as a continuation of the Paintworks III 

development. A comparison of the key features of both is set out in the following Table: 
 

 
 

 
PHASE IV 
15/04217/F 

 

 
PHASE III 

13/04275/M 
14/02762/X 

 

 
Employment B1 

 
 

 
2714 sqm (including 

962sqm of retained floor 
space) 

 
5,898 +  

1,749 sqm (live work) 

 
Apartments/ Houses C3 

 
 

 
92 

 
210 + 11 live/work 

 
Affordable Housing 

 
 

 
30% (taking into account 

VBC) 

 
5% 

 
Active Ground Floor 

A1-A3 
 

 
414 sqm of flexible A3/B1 

floor space 

 
473sqm 

 
Gross Floor Area 

 

 
11,310 sqm` 

 
28,486 sq.m 

 
Height (Storeys) 

 

 
8 

 
8 

 
Car Parking Spaces 

 

 
128 

 
374 

 
Cycle Parking Spaces 

 
168 

 
292 

Page 23



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

 
BREEAM Standard 

 

 
Very Good 

 
Very Good 

 
1.5 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is £559,999.73. 
 

2.0 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 

2.1 The site area is about 0.64ha excluding the common access road.  The site is roughly square, 
about 77m E-W and 77-88m N-S, again excluding the access road.  To the north is the River 
Avon, with a gabion wall flood barrier; to the west is Phase II, which is of low level buildings; 
and to the south is the internal site road. 

 
2.2 Across the river is an industrial cityscape, formed by the backs of buildings in St Philips Marsh 

accessed via Albert Road.  This extends eastwards as far as half way along the Phase III site.  
The remainder of the opposite river bank is formed of the Sparke Evans Park, which will 
connect to the Paintworks via a footpath which runs along the east end of Phase III, and the 
existing bridge. 

 
2.3 The approved Phase III development (to the east of the application site), which is under 

construction, will face the application site with a row of four storey live-work units.  The river 
frontage elements of Phase II are of varying design, but will be generally higher than the other 
parts of that development. 

 
2.4 Following the grant of planning permission for Phase III, the Endemol building has been 

vacated.  
 
2.5 The site is located within Flood Zone 3. The River Avon (part) adjacent to the site is 

designated as a Site of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI). 
 

3.0 DETAILS OF APPLICATION 

3.1 This is an application for full planning permission for the demolition of the Endemol building 
and partial demolition of Building Six to facilitate a mixed use scheme to deliver commercial 
and residential development, including up to 2714 sqm of commercial space (B1 with 414sqm 
of flexible A3/B1 floor space) and 92 dwellings within four buildings. 

3.2 The proposed north building would comprise a five storey building with four commercial units 
and secure parking for 12 vehicles on the ground floor, and 28 dwelling on upper floors. 

3.3 The proposed east building would comprise a part six and part eight storey building (including 
a tower) with 3no commercial units and secure parking for 16 vehicles at ground floor, seven 
commercial units at first floor (with flexible A1/A3/B1 use) and 28no residential units on upper 
floors. At ground floor, the building will include a cycle store with space for 143 spaces to 
serve the entire development.  

3.4 The proposed west building would comprise a part three storey, part five storey building with 
3no commercial units and secure parking for 39 vehicles on the ground floor and 19no 
dwellings on upper floors. 

3.5 The application proposal includes the adaption of one of the existing buildings on the site 
“Building 6”. The middle bay (Unit 6.2) would be demolished and the rear of the smallest bay 
(Unit 6.1) would be extended. An additional floor would be added to provide 1no dwelling and 
1no B1 unit at first floor level. ‘Building 6’ would create an additional 3no commercial units (a 
total 6no commercial units) on the ground floor.  

Page 24



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 

09/04693/P Outline application for the retention of Endemol buildings, demolition of other 
existing buildings and erection of new buildings of 2-7 storeys built on top of 
new undercroft car park to provide employment floor space (B1); Retail floor 
space (A1, A3 & A4); up to 11 live/work units; and up to 210 residential units 
(C3); with revised vehicular access off Bath Road (Including the Edemol 
building – part of the application site).  

 Granted - 21 December 2012 
 
13/04275/M Phase III 
 

Application for approval of Reserved Matters (layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping) following outline approval 09/04693/P, which approved the 
retention of Endemol buildings, demolition of other existing buildings and 
erection of new buildings of 2-7 storeys built on top of new undercroft car park 
to provide employment floor space (B1); Retail floor space (A1, A3 & A4); up to 
11 live/work units; and up to 210 residential units (C3); with revised vehicular 
access off Bath Road.  
Granted – 19 May 2014 

 
14/02762/X Application for variation of condition 8 (Site wide energy statement) attached to 

planning permission 09/04693/P   
   Granted 24 September 2014 
 

14/02763/X  Application for variation of condition 9 (Code for sustainable homes CSH) 
attached to planning permission 09/04693/P  
Granted 24 September 2014 

 
14/02764/X  Application for variation of condition 10 (BREEAM for commercial and retail 

floorspace) attached to planning permission 09/04693/P. 
 Granted 24 September 2014 

 
 
5.0 RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 

EXTERNAL CONSULTEES 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY 

 
5.1 We have no objection to the proposal, subject to the inclusion of the following condition and 

informative in any grant of planning consent: 
 
 AVON FIRE 
 
5.2 The additional residential and commercial development will require additional hydrants to be 

installed and appropriately-sized water mains to be provided for fire-fighting purposes. 
 

AVON AND SOMERSET POLICE 
 
5.3 The crime figures for this area over the last 10 months are low. This new development with a 

mix of commercial and residential has the opportunity to be designed to provide good natural 
surveillance, security and safety. A relevant management condition is recommended.  

 

Page 25



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

5.4 It is also suggest the developer gives consideration to applying for Secured by Design 
certification as this would ensure minimum standards of security.  

 
 BRISTOL TREE FORUM 
 
5.5 Not enough new green infrastructure. About 8 new trees are going in which looks woeful when 

you look at the landscape plans. There should be many more shading the car parking area. 
There's plenty of room to set up diamond style pits at the intersection of 4 spaces. Applying 
DM15 in this important location (also mitigates water run-off and pollution wash off risks into 
the river). 

 
INTERNAL CONSULTEES 

 
BCC CITY DESIGN GROUP 

 
5.6 Requested that attention be paid to the following: 
 

- Softening of the car parking by providing additional trees. 
- The design of the North building along the water front appearing fussy with the offsets and 

balconies above the curved lower façade. 
- Clarification of the design of the grill for the car parking. 
- Details of materials to be secured by condition. 
 
BCC TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
5.7 The general layout for this development is considered suitable. As with the larger Paintworks development 

we do not anticipate that the internal roads will be adopted, and with this in mind the streets meet an 
acceptable level of road safety. The applicant has included a tracking diagram showing that a refuse truck 
can turn properly within the site. 

 
5.8 It is not clear how deliveries will be made to the flats and the commercial premises. This is not 

mentioned in the Transport Statement. In particular flats can be expected to receive deliveries of 
shopping and other goods ordered on the Internet, which may give rise to a large number of 
movements if done on a regular basis. 

 
5.9 The provision of 128 car parking spaces is within the maximum standards for this type of 

development. The flats are allocated 106 spaces, which is slightly more than one each, with 
some of the spaces shared by commercial uses. However the maximum standard for the 
commercial element is 36 spaces, so there need not be much of this type of sharing. 

 
5.10 It is likely that residents of flats here would want to own a car, as the site is a little way from the 

city centre; however there may well be some who do not need a car. There is little scope to 
park away from the site or in other parts of the site. Therefore the management of car parking 
should be as flexible as possible. 

 
5.11 There is no proposal to allocate visitor spaces for the flats. It would be useful for the spare 

commercial spaces to be available for visitor parking in the evening and at weekends, in order 
to make use of the land more efficient. 

 
5.12 It is therefore recommend that the site should have a parking management plan, which should 

contain a maximum of 36 parking spaces for commercial uses, 1 space available for each flat 
that requires one, and a suitable process for allocating visitor parking. 

 
5.13 The development provides 168 cycle parking spaces, which is a shade less than the Local 

Plan standard (this would be 177). While this may appear not to be particularly significant in 

Page 26



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

view of the scale of this development, the Local Plan standards are minimum requirements 
and therefore it should be noted that the development falls short of the standard required. 

 
5.14 Local residents have questioned the effect that this and the other developments on the same 

site will have on parking in the local streets. In my opinion this can be adequately mitigated by 
the use of a local Residents Parking Scheme (similar to the one implemented last year in 
Bower Ashton). It seems reasonable to expect the developer to deliver this, as it would 
complement the Travel Plan measures being put in place to reduce car trips, by confining 
parking to the interior of the site. However there are no mitigation measures offered in the 
Planning Obligations Statement, so I recommend this should be pursued further before any 
planning permission is granted. A parking scheme can be expected to cost of the order of 
£20,000 and take about 18 months to implement. 

 
5.15 A Travel Plan has been submitted for Phase 4, and should be implemented in conjunction with 

the Travel Plans for the other phases of development, in order to achieve a joined up 
approach. A standard condition to achieve this is recommended.   

 
BCC ARCHAEOLOGY 

 
5.16 The site has limited archaeological potential since there was no known occupation of the site 

(apart from a few small buildings of unknown purpose) until the development of the site for the 
present buildings in the first quarter of the 20th century. Nevertheless, these buildings present 
an interesting record of industrial development at this time and if they are not to be retained, 
should at least be recorded in detail prior to demolition. This work should be undertaken by a 
suitably qualified archaeological team, in accordance with published standards and guidance. 
The work should be secured by appropriate condition. 

 
BCC CONTAMINATED LAND OFFICER 

 
5.17 Recommend the imposition of standard conditions. 
 

BCC FLOOD RISK MANAGER 
 
5.18 The proposed surface water management approach to separate surface water flows from the 

existing foul system and to discharge surface water to the River Avon without attenuation is 
acceptable. However the submitted sustainable drainage strategy contains insufficient detail. 
There is therefore a requirement for an acceptable drainage strategy to be submitted ahead of 
the commencement of development. This must include the following (as a minimum): 

 
 BCC SUSTAINABLE CITIES 

 
5.19 Comments incorporated into the Key Issue below. 
 

BCC NATURE CONSERVATION OFFICER 
 
5.20 In accordance with Policy DM29 in the Local Plan, the provision of living (green/brown) roofs is 

recommended to provide habitat for wildlife. The proposal to provide living roofs on the roof 
spaces of all four buildings, except for those areas allocated for roof gardens and solar PV 
panels, is welcomed. With respect to the design of the roofs, the following guidance applies. 
The roofs should be covered with local low-nutrient status aggregates (not topsoil) and no 
nutrients added. Ideally aggregates should be dominated by gravels with 10 -20% of sands. 
On top of this there should be varying depths of sterilised sandy loam between 0 - 3 cm deep. 
An overall substrate depth of at least 10 cm of crushed demolition aggregate or pure crushed 
brick is desirable. The roofs should include areas of bare ground and not be entirely seeded 
(to allow wild plants to colonise) and not employ Sedum (stonecrop) because this has limited 

Page 27



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

benefits for wildlife. To benefit certain invertebrates the roofs should include local substrates, 
stones, shingle and gravel with troughs and mounds, piles of pure sand 20 30 cm deep for 
solitary bees and wasps to nest in, small logs, coils of rope and log piles of dry dead wood to 
provide invertebrate niches (the use of egg-sized pebbles should be avoided because gulls 
and crows may pick the pebbles up and drop them). Deeper areas of substrate which are at 
least 20 cm deep are valuable to provide refuges for animals during dry spells. An area of 
wildflower meadow can also be seeded on the roof for pollinating insects. Please see 
www.livingroofs.org for further information and the following reference: English Nature (2006). 
Living roofs. ISBN 1 85716 934.4 

 
5.21 The adjacent site is a designated Site of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI), (River Avon 

(part of). The following planning condition accords with the recommendation in the ecological 
survey dated June 2015. 

 
COUNCILLOR HARRIET BRADLEY 

 
5.22 I am submitting this statement in support of residents in my ward who are campaigning for a 

rejection and reconsideration of the plans for Phase 4 of the Paintworks development. We are 
of course aware of the great need for the provision of new housing in Bristol, and of the 
important role of private development schemes in this provision, but we assert that  schemes 
must be appropriately designed in terms of the surrounding environment and community 
needs. 

 
5.23 The Paintworks is a high-density housing scheme in an area already plagued by extreme 

volumes of traffic and lack of parking facilities for residents. We contend that the provision of 
parking within the current scheme is inadequate to cater for the likely demand from residents 
and users of the Paintworks. Residents on the Bath Road and Edward and Chatsworth Roads 
already have considerable difficulty in finding places to park on return from work.  

 
5.24 At the meeting of Planning Committee A on June 17th it was repeated several times by 

members that it is a problem that planning applications are not considered in tandem, so that 
serial developments pile up creating unacceptable pressure in an area. Along with Paintworks 
Phase III and IV there are two other sites with planning approval pending on  this stretch of the 
Bath Road, one where the car wash is currently located, the other next to the Paintworks 
beside Majestic Wines. The cumulative effect of these on traffic flows in the Bath Road is 
horrible to contemplate, especially with the Arena completion in sight. I am taken by the 
suggestion of one of the complainants that one of these sites might be purchased for a car 
park. There are no major car parks along the Bath Road. 

 
5.25 I have other concerns about Paintworks Phase IV. One is the impact on the original 

businesses on the site, around and behind the popular Bocabar.  Paintworks was set up as a 
creative quarter to support small businesses. Some 80 of these contribute enterprise, jobs and 
creativity to the area. Unfortunately Phase 4 buildings are projected so close to the businesses 
that they may not be able carry on their trading and activities during the disruptive construction 
period. Many anticipate having to close because of noise, vibrations and dust. In one case an 
existing premise is literally being enveloped by a new building. It is my contention that the 
potential loss of these enterprises represents real harm to the community and the city. 

 
5.26 Finally, the scheme offers a limited amount of affordable housing. I consider this in relation to 

Mayor Marvin Rees' statement in Full Council that all decision making must be premised on 
the need to tackle inequality in the city. The danger is that the apartments may be purchased 
as an investment opportunity by buy-to-let absentee landlords, adding to the stock of high-rent 
property in the city centre, but not providing the needed homes we need for less well-off local 
workers and their families.  To put this in context, in 2013-4 2287 properties were available to 
bid for through the Council's system, while over 13,000 people were registered to bid: at the 

Page 28



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

same time house prices are soaring, by 10.2 % in 2014-5, making it a prime target for 
speculators 

 
5.27 In sum, the disadvantages to Brislington and to local residents and users of the Paintworks 

appear to me to outweigh the advantages offered by Phase 4 and I urge that the scheme is 
redesigned to mitigate these disadvantages.  

 
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
5.28 During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this 

scheme in relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities 
protected characteristics.  These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation.  Overall, it is considered that the approval of this application would not have 
any significant adverse impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities Act 
2010. In this case the design and access to the development have been assessed with 
particular regard to disability, age and pregnancy and maternity issues. 

 
COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 
 

5.29 241 neighbouring properties were consulted and as a result 97 representations were received, 
making the following comments: 
 
Principle: 
 
• We object to the notion that the Endemol buildings need to be demolished to create 

more units 
• This is too great an increase to the population in a critical area of the estate, increase 

will have adverse effects on the existing tenants and the site as a whole 
 
Parking 
 
• Proposal will greatly increase the volume of traffic, excessing parking problems and the 

tension that arise from this, increase in traffic and human noise 
• Reliance on dual-use parking is the only way that Verve can match the recommended 

figures for parking but they have provided no evidence as to how the dual use parking 
system will work in reality 

• Number of parking spaces recommended by Bristol City Council is 142.5, applicant is 
proposing 128 

• There could be up to 246 residents and 150 employees 
• The proposal does not indicate how visitor parking will be handled 
• Phase I and Phase II have been struggling for years with parking issues 
• Some people are parking temporarily in areas around Phase III as a way of handling 

the demand (Officer’s note: This comment was received in October 2015) 
• Events that happen at the Event Space have proven the chaos that can occur in 

regards to parking when a high number of visitors come into the site 
• Numerous occasions where facts and figures contradict each other depending on 

which document is being read 
• [Unit 6.1] is within the site boundary but it’s floor space isn’t included, when our tenancy 

expires in 2019 the developer could absorb the unit into Phase IV as more B1 
floorspace, without needing to add to the parking spaces 

• Tangent Books has been on site for almost 10 years and throughout that time Verve 
have shown themselves incapable of implementing an acceptable parking policy. 
Despite representations from tenants, Verve have shown no interest in supporting car 
sharing schemes, introducing cycle hire any other incentives to cut down on car use. 

Page 29



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

Consequently there are not enough parking spaces on the site at present and the 
parking provision for an application of this density is hopeless. This is particularly 
pertinent because there is no on-street parking nearby and the area is likely to be 
included in an RPZ when the proposed arena is completed. 

 
Design 
 
Amenity 
 
• The close proximity of [the West Building] will reduce the amount of natural daylight 

coming through the south elevation of our unit [6.1], this is used to illuminate our model 
making area 

• Development will cause a total loss of light to our north windows as the building will be 
constructed right against the wall [unit 6.1] 

• Flats and roof garden will have views into our south windows, affecting our commercial 
confidentiality 

• Proximity of Class B2 usage to residential – problems may arise due to the close 
proximity of our unit to residential use (Officer’s note: there is no evidence to prove that 
the unit (6.1) has consent for B2 use) 

 
Landscaping 
 
• There are not enough trees.  There should be more shading the car parking area.  

Policy DM15 should be applied. 
 

Construction Impacts (Officer’s Note: These cannot be used as a reason to refuse 
planning consent) 
 

• Being located within a construction site for such a period of time, it is likely that our 
company will not survive – we might lose clients as they need our company to commit 
to completing both model making and the production shoot. 

 
• Amount of dust and dirt would be immense, the creative and filming work that we do 

requires clean, dust free areas. 
 
• Demolition will have significant impact as there is only a shared internal wall between 

[our unit] and the demolition/construction. 
 
• Vibration will badly affect the animation construction work that we do – we still feel 

vibrations coming through from Phase III. 
 
• Noise from demolition and construction and workforce will affect our ability to have 

production shoots within our studio and will affect business meetings and client 
communications via telephone/Skype 

 
• Demolition and redevelopment in such a close proximity to our office would make the 

business inoperable during the construction phase. 
 
• If you grant permission, the developers will clearly be in breach of the Quiet Enjoyment 

section of my lease. 
 
• Unit 5.9 is within 100m of the current Endemol building and I cannot see how we will be 

able to operate during times of demolition or ground work 
 
• Impact on properties, parking, noise and pollution 

Page 30



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

• The work currently in progress approx 200 meters away has been very noisy and has 
made parking more difficult 

 
Other 
 
• Lack of truthfulness in the application – no mention of the [occupied] studio within 

proposed area of development (Officer’s response: this does not materially affect the 
assessment of the application) 

 
• Already leased land (Officer’s response: this does not materially affect the assessment 

of the application). 
 
• Lost employment: applicant has stated that there is no employment on site, we are 

within the development site and include two full time employees and also regular 
employment of freelance people.  

 
• Community feedback report: This does not include our objections given verbally at the 

[public consultation event] and by email afterwards. 
 
• The proposed unit numbering for the units will be problematic and will cause confusion 

(Officer’s response: This is not a planning matter) 
 
• It’s virtually impossible to understand the proposal, 73 documents with no clear 

summary, how are people to make comments?  Date should be extended and made 
more clear. 

 
• Verve’s paperwork gives conflicting statements about the number of people that will 

exist within the site, in both the residents living here and people working here. 
 
• The onus is on us to understand very complicated documents in our own time – this is 

unreasonable with the scale and amount of these developments. 
 

• This application is an example of how the development has crept from being an 
innovative and interesting development into a high-density, high-rise nightmare. The 
original plans were sympathetic to existing tenants and included cycle ways and linking 
green spaces. Most of that seems to have gone and been replaced by this entirely 
inappropriate application. 

 
• There has been no consultation with existing tenants by Verve and the developer. 

When the original plans were unveiled, tenants were fully consulted and their views 
taken into consideration. Now the developer is simply trying to extract as much money 
from the development without any consideration for existing tenants. 

 
 
6.0 RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012  
 

Bristol Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011)  
 

BCS1 South Bristol  
BCS5 Housing Provision  
BCS7 Centres and Retailing  
BCS8 Delivering a Thriving Economy  
BCS9 Green Infrastructure  

Page 31



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

BCS10 Transport and Access Improvements  
BCS11 Infrastructure and Developer Contributions  
BCS12 Community Facilities  
BCS13 Climate Change  
BCS14 Sustainable Energy  
BCS15 Sustainable Design and Construction  
BCS16 Flood Risk and Water Management  
BCS17 Affordable Housing Provision  
BCS18 Housing Type  
BCS20 Effective and Efficient Use of Land  
BCS21 Quality Urban Design  
BCS22 Conservation and the Historic Environment  
BCS23 Pollution  

 
Bristol Site Allocations and Development Management Policies  

 
DM10 Food and drink uses and the evening economy  
DM7 Town centre uses  
DM10 Food and drink uses and the evening economy  
DM12 Retaining valuable employment sites  
DM14 The health impacts of development  
DM15 Green infrastructure provision  
DM16 Open space for recreation  
DM17 Development involving existing green infrastructure  
DM19 Development and nature conservation  
DM22 Development adjacent to waterways  
DM23 Transport development management  
DM24 Transport schemes  
DM26 Local character and distinctiveness  
DM27 Layout and form  
DM28 Public realm  
DM29 Design of new buildings  
DM31 Heritage assets  
DM32 Recycling and refuse provision in new development  
DM33 Pollution control, air quality and water quality  
DM34 Contaminated land  
DM35 Noise mitigation 

 
Allocation BSA1202 Paintworks Phase III and adjacent land (part) 

 
Temple Quarter Spatial Framework 

 
 
7.0 KEY ISSUES 
 

(A)       IS THE PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE?  
 

Allocation 
 
7.1 Part of the site is allocated for development under Policy SA1, however this only extends to 

the part of the site that was included in the Phase III outline application.  The Paintworks as a 
whole is included within the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone.   

 
7.2 The allocation sets out that mixed-use development including housing and employment land 

would be acceptable – the inclusion of housing constrains the employment to B1 uses.  Much 

Page 32



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

of the Paintworks Phase I and II is occupied on a B1 basis, and is heavily used by small 
creative, web-based and related companies.  There is also a small amount of D1 use, for 
example dentist, chiropractor. 

 
7.3 Sites within the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone are expected to deliver mainly employment-

led development, with some mixed use areas including residential and leisure; existing 
employment sites should be retained.  As this site is in a more residential area, functionally 
separate from the main Zone, it is considered appropriate that the development includes a 
substantial amount of residential development.   

 
Loss of employment land 

 
7.4 The new employment floorspace proposed as part of the development is 1752 sq m, however 

4321 sq m will be lost, with a net loss of 2569 sq m.  The retained B1 areas comprise 962 sq 
m.  Policy DM12 requires that employment sites are retained for that use unless certain 
specific circumstances apply.   

 
7.5 Policy BCS8 of the Core Strategy seeks the retention of employment land that makes a 

valuable contribution to the economy and employment opportunities. Policy DM12 of the Site 
Allocations and Development Management Policies states that employment land should be 
retained unless there is no demand for employment uses on the site, the continued 
employment use would have an unacceptable impact on environmental quality of the 
surrounding area, a reduction is required to facilitate improvement to the existing premises, or 
it is to be used for industrial or commercial training purposes.  In this case, none of this criteria 
applies and this proposal could be regarded as contrary to this policy. However, a key material 
consideration is the character of the overall Paintworks development.   A net reduction in floor 
space is necessary to improve the existing premises, which in this instance is the application 
site and the entire Paintworks development.  Although employment floor space is high at 
present, it is of a poor quality and unsuitable for re-use. 
 

7.6 It is noted that Endemol was well suited for the BBC as they used it as a studio, but it is 
generally not a great employment space as it is inflexible.  Presently the Phase IV site includes 
5 separate commercial units and the proposal will provide up to 26 B1 units range from 21-
149sqm.  This fits the Paintworks model of small units for creative, young, fledging businesses 
and will provide significantly more jobs than the current large, inflexible spaces.   
 

7.7 It is estimated that that the development will provide up to 150 full time jobs, compared to the 
10 permanent jobs by Endemol and 2 jobs in ScaryCat Studio.  In terms of job creation and 
employment opportunities, it meets the requirements of BCSS8, DM12 and the aspirations of 
BTQEZ. 

 
7.8 The site is characterised by an integration of business, residential and live/work units. It is 

considered that the loss of employment land in this part of the application is mitigated by the 
consistency of the application proposal with the overall Paintworks development.  In addition it 
is noted that the quality of the existing B1 floor space is poor.  

 
Inclusion of retail space 

 
7.9 The application includes 414sq m described by the applicant as “A1/A3/B1/flexible”.  The A-

class uses are town centre uses, which when proposed outside an allocated Centre have to be 
specially considered.  

 
7.10 Policy DM7 sets out that small scale retail development can be allowed outside centres to 

serve local need, and that this should be no more than 200 sq m.  An Impact Assessment is 
required for retail uses outside centres where the floorspace proposed is more than 500 sq m. 

Page 33



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

7.11 While it is acknowledged that Phase III included 417sq m of A1/A3/A4 space allowed within 
Phase III on land which includes part of the application site, this proposal for additional retail 
floorspace has been assessed as small scale retail development that will serve the residents 
generated by this application proposal. This part of the application proposal is therefore 
regarded as consistent with development plan policy.  

 
 Proposed Housing Mix 
 
7.12 Policy BCS18 of the Core Strategy requires a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes in order 

to support the creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities. 
 
7.13 As a standalone proposal, the development includes the following mix: 
 

1 bed flats – 36 
2 bed flats – 50 
3 bed flats – 6 

 
7.14 Given the character and location of the site, this is regarded as an acceptable mix consistent 

with this Core Strategy policy. It is noted that family sized housing is delivered as part of 
Phase III. 

 
Conclusion 

 
7.15 In principle, the proposed mix of uses are considered to be acceptable in this location. 
 

(B)        IS THE DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN DESIGN TERMS? 
 
7.16 Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy (2011) seeks to deliver high quality urban design. Policies 

DM26-29 of the Development Management Policies (2014) require that development responds 
to the character of the area, comprises an inter-connected network of streets and spaces, and 
is responsive to the immediate context in terms of its height, scale and massing. DM29 states 
that new buildings should respond appropriately to their importance and reflect their function 
and role in relation to the public realm.  

 
7.17 In considering the proposed design of proposals in the Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone 

(TQEZ), particular attention has been paid to the TQEZ Spatial Framework. Consistent with 
the Council’s Core Strategy of securing high quality sustainable development, the Spatial 
Framework. This states: 

 
“The Bristol Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone represents a unique opportunity for Bristol 
to demonstrate its commitment to quality development that befits a Green Capital. This 
suggests taking a holistic and integrated approach to sustainable urban design and 
place making and setting high expectations for development in the Zone.”  

 
7.18 The application proposal will secure the replacement of the existing buildings on the site with 

buildings which have a character that is consistent with the existing Paintworks development 
and the emerging Phase III. The design of the application proposal will achieve a steady 
transition between the Phase III development and the original Paintworks site.  

 
7.19 The proposed east building will occupy a particularly prominent position within the overall 

Paintworks development at the junction of the main access road from Bath Road and Central 
Road.  It would be 6 storeys tall and would also incorporate a tower. The advice of the City 
Design Group is that while they would have wished to see greater differentiation between the 
tower and the surrounding building, overall it is concluded that the development proposal is 
acceptable. 

Page 34



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

7.20 In respect of the comments set out by the City Design Group (above), the following is noted: 
 

- A condition requiring the submission of landscaping scheme is recommended.  
- It is considered that there are no grounds to recommend a refusal of the application 

proposal on account of the design of the North Building.  
- A condition requiring the submission of sample materials is recommended. 

 
7.21 Overall it is considered that by adding to the Paintworks III scheme and redeveloping the 

Endemol site, the application proposal is consistent with this aspiration. The application 
proposal will facilitate quality development consistent with the surrounding Paintworks site.  

 
Residential amenity for future residents 

 
7.22 With effect from 1 October 2015, internal space standards are set by the national Technical 

Housing Standards.  These are in some cases slightly higher than the minimum City Council 
standards that were introduced in 2011.  Of the 92 flats to be provided, only 26 meet the new 
national standard.  All except five would have met the superseded Bristol City Council 
standard; those five are under that standard by less than 0.5sq m in each case. Given the 
context of surrounding development and the character of the site, this is considered to be 
accepted.  

 
7.23 The pre-application discussions for this site took place at the end of 2014 and early in 2015.  

The National Standard was announced in March 2015, and came into effect for applications 
received after October 2015.  This application was received in September 2015 and therefore 
the application of the now-superseded BCC standards is considered acceptable.   

 
7.24 In respect of the North Building, this building would contain 28 flats over four floors, none at 

 ground floor level.  Of these, most would face the river, or open areas, giving reasonable 
outlook, light and privacy. 

 
7.25 One flat on the south-east corner of each level would face the Phase III buildings at a distance 

of about 9-10m.  The windows on this side would be kitchen or secondary living room 
windows; the other windows, and the balconies, would face south over the open car park.  This 
is considered acceptable. 

 
7.26 There would be 12 single aspect flats in this building, 8 just off south facing and 4 just off north 

facing.  North facing single aspect units should usually be resisted as they offer poor levels of 
amenity in respect of sunlight. However it has been concluded that given the character of the 
overall Paintworks site, they cannot be resisted.   In mitigation, it is noted that these units 
would have an open river outlook, and small balconies which would benefit from westerly sun 
after about 6pm on summer evenings.  This is considered to be an adequate provision of 
amenity. 

 
7.27 In respect of the proposed East Building, the east elevation of this building would be 10m from 

living and bedroom windows in Phase III.  Windows proposed for the east elevation of these 
flats are either secondary or kitchen windows, where the expectation of privacy can be more 
relaxed.  These flats would also have windows to the north or south, which would be more 
open aspects and therefore would provide a higher level of privacy and daylight. 

 
7.28 The west elevation of this building would be separated from the east elevation of the West 

Building by 5-12m.  This separation distance is normally regarded as substandard, however as 
the west elevation of the East building is staggered and the flats each have windows to other 
aspects overall each flat would have some windows that were private and offered an 
acceptable outlook. 

 

Page 35



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

7.29 The north elevation of this building would face over the shared parking area so there would be 
no impact in terms of overlooking or overbearing impact, although direct sunlight would be 
limited. 

 
7.30 The south elevation of this building faces over the shared access road.  There are no issues of 

overlooking here, and these windows would benefit from direct sunlight. 
 
7.31 The proposed west building would include three flats on the north side at Level 1, which is, due 

to the slope of the land, above street level by about 3m.  One of these flats would be single 
aspect to the north, and the other two would be corner units, so with living room windows to 
north and east or west.  Directly opposite these flats, at a distance of about 10m, would be the 
south elevation of Building 6.  The same pattern would be repeated above.  

 
7.32 There would be one single aspect flat on each residential floor on the west elevation.  Although 

these would be only 6.5m laterally from the existing Phase II buildings, the flats would be at a 
higher level, facing over and above the roofs of the retained buildings.  This means that there 
would be no overlooking, and good light penetration.  These flats would have a good outlook, 
and access (albeit slightly awkward) to the roof garden atop the block. 

 
7.33 There would be one single aspect flat on each of levels 2 and 3 on the east elevation.  These 

would face the side of the East building at a distance of about 4.5-12m.  The main, large living 
room windows and terraces of flats opposite would be 6m away.  While occupants of the flats 
opposite would have other rooms that were more private, the two small flats in the West 
building would be overlooked from those terraces and main windows.  Again this would 
normally be regarded unacceptable, in this case a balanced judgement has been made and 
this aspect of the scheme has been accepted.  

 
7.34 The other flats to the west building are to the south of the building, and are dual aspect corner 

units.  Although some of the windows face neighbours at a distance of 9-11m, other windows, 
including to the living room, have a good outlook. 

 
7.35 Building Six would contain 17 flats. One unit, in the roofspace above the larger retained B1 

unit, would have a reasonable outlook from the living room and plenty of light from rooflights.   
 
7.36 Sixteen of the units in this building would be built in three separate blocks around a small 

courtyard.  Of the 16, 14 would be dual aspect but due to the orientations and closeness of 
other buildings would benefit from very little direct sunlight (particularly at lower levels).  The 
north-facing flats in the West building would be 10m away from the living rooms of four of the 
flats. 

 
7.37 Eight of the 12 would have a good outlook from the living room, but north facing. The others 

would have a lower quality of outlook. 12 of the units would have bedroom windows facing 
across the courtyard.  The applicant has shown angled oriel windows, partly obscure glazed, in 
an attempt to minimise the overlooking.   

 
7.38 It is noted that none of the flats in this building would have any balcony or roof garden.  There 

would be a shared courtyard contained by the various elements of Building 6.  The courtyard 
would be about 10m across, and with enclosing walls 12.5m high to north and south.  The 
courtyard would also serve as circulation space, would be shared with the commercial units, 
and would be unlikely to be used as amenity space.   

 
7.39  Overall, of the 92 flats proposed, it is accepted that several would have less than ideal 

provision of residential amenity.  Most of the 76 units in buildings North, East and West are 
considered to be good or borderline acceptable in respect of residential amenity. Of the units 
in Building 6, only two of the 16 proposed are considered acceptable in respect of light, outlook 

Page 36



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

and privacy.  The remainder are only acceptable in respect of light, outlook and privacy to 
living rooms but not bedrooms (without the imposition of relevant conditions to secure obscure 
glazing). In reaching this conclusion, your Officers are mindful of earlier planning decisions on 
the site, including the outline planning permission granted for other parts of Paintworks which 
established the principle of high density mixed use development in this location. Your officers 
do not consider that the scheme is so deficient that a refusal could be sustained. 

 
(C)  IS THE IMPACT ON EXISTING BUSINESS USERS ON THE PAINTWORKS SITE 

ACCEPTABLE? 
 
7.40 A number of representations have been received from existing business tenants on the 

Paintworks site. For example, the existing operator in Unit 6.1 has objected.  This Unit forms 
part of Building 6 which is to be redeveloped. Their objection is summarised as follows: 

 
“We cannot comprehend that it should even be possible that if the realisation of any large 
development proposal, such as this, results in the demise of an existing company within that 
site, that the application could be granted planning permission.” 

 
7.41 Many of the reasons behind this particular objection and others submitted by business 

occupiers are addressed by relevant condition. 

7.42 It is noted that Unit 6.1 is not developed and will be retained in situ as part of the developed 
site. There will be disturbance during construction and the Applicants have indicated the 
following: 

 
“I acknowledge that the implementation of any consented scheme could have a temporary 
adverse impact on units in close proximity to the application site, particularly unit 6.1. The 
applicant has previously adopted a reasonable and supportive approach to ScaryCat Studio 
during difficult financial times for them and, with assistance from Alder King property agents, is 
exploring opportunities to temporarily relocate them rent free whilst the most sensitive 
construction works would take.” 

 
7.43 There is a requirement in the recommended conditions for the submission of a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and this will afford the opportunity to review the 
impact on the tenants of Unit 6.1 at the point when development commences and ensure that 
acceptable safeguards are in place.  

 
(D)  ARE THE PARKING ARRANGEMENTS ACCEPTABLE AND WILL THE PROPOSAL 

HAVE AN ACCEPTABLE IMPACT ON THE AVAILABILITY OF PARKING IN THE 
SURROUNDING AREA? 

 
7.44 The impact of additional parking in the surrounding area is of particular concern to surrounding 

residents. Paintworks III is currently under construction and this application for additional 
business accommodation and 92 dwellings is of concern to residents of Edward Road and 
Chatsworth Road in particular. The representations received set out concern about the impact 
of additional development on the availability of parking particularly in these cul-de-sacs. 

 
7.45 The application site is in a sustainable location which is close to the Bath Road which is an 

important bus route into the city centre from Bath. The application site is also located close to 
Temple Meads Station.   

 
7.46 A total of 129 car parking spaces, including 18 spaces for the commercial units, were 

proposed across the development site. As is noted by your Transport Officers, this proposed 
provision is within the maximum standards for this type of development. The flats are allocated 
106 spaces, which is slightly more than one each, with some of the spaces shared by 

Page 37



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

commercial uses. However the maximum standard for the commercial element is 36 spaces, 
so there need not be much of this type of sharing. The on-site parking provision is therefore 
regarded as acceptable.  

 
7.47 There is though significant concern for surrounding residents that the immediate area 

surrounding the application site has accommodated a lot of development and therefore a lot of 
additional cars over recent years and that there is insufficient parking available for existing 
residents. In response to this, the applicants have agreed in principle to fund investigations 
into local parking restraint measures for the surrounding area, subject to evidence and 
justification as required by national planning policy. An update on this will be provided at 
Committee. The advice of your officers in Transport Development Management is that this can 
be justified on highways safety grounds.  

 
(E)  DOES THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PROVIDE AN APPROPRIATE LEVEL OF 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING? 
 
7.48 The proposed development falls within Use Class C3 of the Use Classes Order, meaning that 

it is required to address the Council’s Affordable Housing Policies. It comprises 92 dwellings 
and therefore it is required to comply with Core Strategy Policy BCS17, which requires the 
provision of up to 30% affordable housing from major residential schemes in South Bristol, 
meaning that up to 28 affordable dwellings would be sought. 

 
7.49 However, there are currently 4,898 square metres of vacant buildings on the site. In May 2016, 

following the overturn of a successful legal challenge by West Berkshire and Reading 
Councils, the government reintroduced the Vacant Building Credit (VBC). The intention of VBC 
is that it will encourage the redevelopment of brownfield sites, and the government’s Planning 
Practice Guidance states as follows: 

 
“Where a vacant building is brought back into any lawful use, or is demolished to be replaced 
by a new building, the developer should be offered a financial credit equivalent to the existing 
gross floorspace of relevant vacant buildings when the local planning authority calculates any 
affordable housing contribution which will be sought. Affordable housing contributions may be 
required for any increase in floorspace.” (Para 021 Reference ID: 23b-021-20160519) 

 
7.50 The application of VBC means that affordable housing should only be sought on any 

floorspace proposed that is over and above that which is already on the site.  
In the case of Paintworks Phase IV; the existing floorspace accounts for 60% of the floorspace 
of the proposed development, which is 8,165 square metres. Therefore affordable housing 
should only be sought on the additional 40%. When translated to numbers of dwellings, this 
results in an affordable housing requirement of 11 affordable dwellings (i.e. 40% of the 28 
dwellings that would otherwise have been sought). 

 
7.51 The applicant has confirmed that they are prepared to provide 11 affordable dwellings. 

Officers consider that once VBC is taken into account, 11 affordable dwellings is the maximum 
that could be sought and therefore it is recommended that provision of these 11 dwellings is 
secured by way of a Section 106 Agreement. 

 
(F)  DOES THE PROPOSAL COMPLY WITH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABILITY POLICIES? 

 
7.52 Policies BCS13, BSC1, BSC15 and BSC16  of the adopted Cores Strategy give guidance on 

sustainability standards to be achieved in any development and what measures need to be 
included to ensure the development meets the climate change goals of the development 
plan.  Applicants are expected to demonstrate that a development would meet these 
standards by means of a sustainability statement including the measures incorporated to 
improve the environmental performance of the buildings. 

Page 38



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

7.53 BREEAM assessments provide a useful mechanism with which to consider the sustainability 
credentials of development. Consistent with Paintworks III, the application proposal will 
achieve (by compliance with a relevant conditions) a ‘Very Good’ rating.  The only reason for 
an “Excellent” rating level has not been achieved is due the costly overhead of monitoring and 
reporting being excluded.  The reporting measures are too onerous for the small businesses 
that will operate from Phase IV.  This approach for Paintworks BREEAM assessments was 
agreed by committee on Phase III. 

 
 
8.0 CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 This application proposal must be seen in the context of the Paintworks III development and 

the need to secure the overall redevelopment of the entire Paintworks site, which is an 
important part of Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone.  

 
8.2 While it is recognised that the residential amenity of some of the residential units does not 

meet all required standards, it is not considered that it is so poor that a recommendation of 
refusal could be sustained. It has been established that the character of the overall Paintworks 
site lends itself to high density mixed use development of the kind before you.  A balanced 
judgement of the planning merits of the scheme point to a scheme which will provide an 
appropriate mix of dwellings for its location and will significantly enhance the Paintworks site. 
Accordingly your officers recommend that, subject to the successful completion of a legal 
agreement, that planning permission be granted. 

 
8.3 Furthermore, your Officer have sought to address the concerns of surrounding residents about 

the level of parking in the area, acknowledging the character of the residential development 
located close to the busy Bath Road. In consultation with the Applicants and subject to 
appropriate evidence and justification by the Local Authority, funding will be secured to explore 
parking restraint measures that will help surrounding residents. 

 
 
9.0 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVEL (CIL) 
 
9.1 The CIL liability for this development is £559,999.73,  however social housing relief may be 

claimed on those residential dwellings included in the development that are to be managed by 
a Housing Association for the provision of affordable housing. 

 
 

Page 39



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

Recommendations 
 
GRANT subject to Planning Agreement  
 
The completion, within a period of six months from the date of this committee, or any other 
time as may be reasonably agreed with the Service Director, Planning and at the applicant's 
expense, of a planning agreement made under the terms of Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), entered into by the applicant, Bristol City Council 
and any other interested parties to secure: 
 

- The provision of 11 affordable dwellings. 
- A sum (to be updated at Committee) to fund a scheme of parking restraint measures 

to deter overspill from the application site. 
- Fire Hydrants 

 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 
Time limit for commencement of development 
 
1.  Full Planning Permission 

 
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the date 
of this permission. 
 
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by 
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
Pre commencement condition(s) 
 
2. Construction Management Plan 
 

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction 
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and shall provide for: 

 

 the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 

 loading and unloading of plant and materials 

 storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 

 site preparation and maintenance 

 the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities 
for public viewing, where appropriate 

 wheel washing facilities 

 measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 

 a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works 

 provision of satisfactory vehicular, cycle and pedestrian access and egress arrangements to 
and within completed parts of the site for the public and occupants during the phased 
development of the site 

 measures to prevent any impacts (e.g. temporary external lighting) on the River Avon or its 
bankside (which is a Site of Nature Conservation Interest) 

 communications with local community both prior to and during construction 

 regular site monitoring to ensure measures are being adhered to 
 

Reason: In order to ensure that the development does not cause unacceptable impacts on the 
surrounding highway network and to safeguard the amenity of nearby occupiers and the Site of 
Nature Conservation Interest along the banks of the River Avon 

Page 40



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

3. Land affected by contamination - Submission of Remediation Scheme  
 

No development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a 
condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings 
and other property and the natural and historical environment has been prepared, submitted to 
and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works 
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works 
and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks 
to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

 
4. Land affected by contamination - Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme  

 
In the event that contamination is found, no development other than that required to be carried out 
as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall take place until the approved remediation 
scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local Planning Authority must be 
given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and 
be approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks 
to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 

5. Sample panels of all of the external materials, including brickwork, larch boarding, roof tiles and 
window/door frames, demonstrating the colour, texture, face bond and pointing are to be erected 
on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant parts of the 
work are commenced. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
details before the building is occupied. 
 
Reason: In order that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory. 

 
6. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping, which shall include indications of 
all existing trees and hedgerows on the land, and details of any to be retained, together with 
measures for their protection, in the course of development.  The approved scheme shall be 
implemented so that planting can be carried out during the first planting season following the 
occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner.  All 
planted materials shall be maintained for five years and any trees or plants removed, dying, being 
damaged or becoming diseased within that period shall be replaced in the next planting season 
with others of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted unless the council 
gives written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason: To protect and enhance the character of the site and the area, and to ensure its 
appearance is satisfactory. 

 

Page 41



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

7. Phasing Plan 
 
No development (including demolition shall commence until a phasing plan has been approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The phasing plan shall identify and describe the phases of 
construction of development including: 
 

 The phasing of the construction of the car park relative to the proposed buildings 

 The relevant public realm/infrastructure elements shown on the approved drawings and a 
scheme of temporary landscaping/highway works, including details of interim arrangements for 
vehicular access, parking and servicing, and public pedestrian/cycle access through the site 

 The delivery of commercial floor space relative to residential units/floor space, which unless 
otherwise agreed in writing the Local Planning Authority shall be provided (ready for tenant fit-
out) on a pro-rata/equivalent basis 

 The delivery of site-wide affordable housing provision (as required by the S106) 

 Identification of those buildings/uses within that shall either not be occupied, or shall not be 
more than 50% occupied, until those identified elements have been constructed in accordance 
with the approved details to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and made 
available for public use or occupation (where relevant) 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the approved phasing 
plan and/or any subsequent amendments to it that have been agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the orderly and satisfactory development of the site, in the interests of highway 
safety, and to assist in achieving the planning benefits of the scheme. 

 
8. BREEAM 
 

No development shall take place until evidence that the commercial and retail (A3) is registered 
with a BREEAM certification body (or design stage certificate with interim rating if available) has 
been submitted indicating that the development can achieve the stipulated final BREEAM level.  
Within six months of occupation of the relevant commercial / retail floorspace, a final Certificate 
certifying that BREEAM (or any such equivalent national measure of sustainable building which 
replaces that scheme) rating (Very Good) has been achieved for this development shall be issued 
unless the Local Planning Authority agrees in writing to an alternate BREEAM rating level and/or 
an extension of the period by which a Certificate is issued. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development achieves BREEAM rating level (Very Good) (or any such 
equivalent national measure of sustainability for building design which replaces that scheme) and 
assessment and certification shall be carried out by a licensed BREEAM assessor and to ensure 
that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate change and to meeting 
targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. 

 
9. Archaeological recording 
 

No development shall take place until the applicant/developer has secured the implementation of 
a programme of archaeological work (including an archaeological watching brief and survey of the 
existing buildings) in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation which has been 
submitted by the developer and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The scheme of investigation shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; 
and: 
 

 The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 

 The programme for post investigation assessment 

Page 42



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

 Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 

 Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 
site investigation 

 Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 
investigation 

 Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out 
within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 

 
Reason: To ensure that archaeological remains and features are recorded prior to their 
destruction. 

 
10. Flood resilience measures 

 
No development shall commence until details of flood resilience measures providing effective 
flood protection up to a level of at least 10.4m AOD have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be implemented prior to the 
first occupation of the development. 
 
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants. 

 
11. Surface water drainage 
 

No development shall take place until a detailed design of surface water drainage for the site 
(using sustainable drainage methods) where appropriate has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved detail design prior to the use of the relevant part of the 
development commencing. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into the 
development. 

 
12. Flood evacuation plan – residential 
 

No development shall take place until the applicant has submitted to and had approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority a Flood Warning and Evacuation Plan (FEP).  This Plan shall 
include the following information: 

 
During Demolition/Construction Process 
 

 command and control (decision making process and communications to ensure activation of 
FEP); 

 training and exercising of personnel on site (H&S records of to whom and when); 

 flood warning procedures (in terms of receipt and transmission of information and to whom); 

 site evacuation procedures and routes; and 

 provision for identified safe refuges (who goes there and resources to sustain them). 
 

During Occupation of Development 
 

 occupant awareness of the likely frequency and duration of flood events; 

 safe access to and from the development; 

 subscription details to Environment Agency flood warning system, ‘Flood Warning Direct’. 
 

Reason: To limit to risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of flood 
management on the site.’ 
 

Page 43



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

13. Flood evacuation plan – commercial 
 

No development shall take place until the applicant has submitted to and had approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority a Flood Warning and Evacuation Plan (FEP).  This Plan shall 
include the following information: 

 

 command and control (decision making process and communications to ensure activation of 
FEP); 

 training and exercising of personnel on site (H&S records of to whom and when); 

 flood warning procedures (in terms of receipt and transmission of information and to whom); 

 site evacuation procedures and routes; and 

 provision for identified safe refuges (who goes there and resources to sustain them). 
 

The FEP shall be reviewed at intervals not exceeding 3 years, and will form part of the Health & 
Safety at Work Register maintained by the applicant. 

 
Reason: To limit the risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of flood 
management on the site.’ 

 
Pre occupation condition(s) 
 
14. Energy 
 

The approved solar PV panel system shall been installed and be operational prior to the first 
occupation of the use/unit which they serve.  Thereafter they shall be retained as operational in 
perpetuity. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate on site renewable energy 
generation in accordance with Core Strategy. 

 
15. Refuse and recycling 
 

A management plan detailing arrangements for the timely and satisfactory collection of refuse and 
recycling materials from the approved storage facilities shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The relevant building(s) shall not be occupied until the 
storage facilities have been provided and the management measures are in place.  Thereafter, the 
approved details/measures shall be permanently retained in accordance with that approval with 
stores kept free of obstruction and available for the storage of refuse and recyclable materials 
associated with the respective building. 
 
Reason: To ensure that appropriate refuse and recycling waste storage is provided, and to ensure 
that refuse collection is undertaken with minimal disruption to the development and general 
environment. 

 
16. Car parking 
 

The car parking provision hereby approved shall be laid out and available for use prior to the first 
occupation of the relevant phase of development.  Thereafter, car parking shall be kept free of 
obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles associated with the development. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate parking facilities to serve the development. 

 

Page 44



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

17. Cycle parking 
 

The resident, tenant and visitor cycle parking provision hereby approved shall be provided prior to 
first occupation of the relevant phase, and shall thereafter be kept free of obstruction and available 
for the parking of cycle only. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking provision. 

 
18. Travel Plan 

 
A Travel Plan comprising immediate, continuing and long-term measures to promote and 
encourage alternatives to single-occupancy car use shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the building(s) hereby permitted.  The 
approved Travel Plan shall be in accordance with the submitted TPA Travel Plan dated August 
2015. 
 
Reason: In order to deliver sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single 
occupancy car journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking and cycling. 
 

19. Public Art 
 
The public art works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Public Realm, 
Landscape & Public Art scheme within 12 months of the first occupation of any accommodation 
within that phase, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of public art in the development. 

 
20. Nature Conservation 

 
The following measures shall be installed prior to the first occupation of the respective building, 
and thereafter shall be retained in perpetuity and maintained as appropriate: 
 

 10 swift boxes on north elevation of North Building; 

 Living roofs to each building. 
 

Reason: To ensure appropriate biodiversity measures are incorporated into the development. 
 
21. Details of extract for A3 uses 
 

The relevant A3 units shall not be occupied until details of the means of extraction and dispersal of 
cooking fumes, including details of the method of construction, odour control measures, noise 
levels, its appearance and finish have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall be installed before the use hereby permitted 
commences and shall thereafter be permanently retained. 
 
Reason: These details require careful consideration and formal approval in order to safeguard the 
amenity of residential properties and to protect the general environment. 

 
22. Management of external areas 
 

Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling or unit, details of management arrangements for all 
hard and soft landscaped areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The works shall then be carried out and retained in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 

Page 45



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development. 
 
Post occupation management 
 
23. Parking and Service Provision 

 
The areas allocated for vehicle parking, loading and unloading, circulation and manoeuvring on 
the approved plans shall only be used for said purpose and not for any other purpose. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of satisfactory off-street parking and 
loading/unloading facilities for the development.  
 

24. Flooding 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA) dated 27 July 2015 by 2GH Water and the following mitigation measures 
detailed within the FRA:  
 
a. Demonstration within the FRA that the improvement/protection and maintenance of existing 
flood defences will be provided.  
b. Identification and provision of safe route(s) into and out of the site to an appropriate safe haven.  
c. Residential finished floor levels are set no lower than 12.0m above Ordnance Datum (AOD). 
Other finished floor levels as per the table in section 9.2 of the FRA 
 
Reason: To ensure the structural integrity of existing flood defences thereby reducing the risk of 
flooding, to ensure safe access and egress from and to the site, and to reduce the risk of flooding 
to the proposed development and future occupants. 

 
25. Sound insulation 

 
The proposed development shall be constructed in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Noise Survey Report hereby approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  In the event that the changes to the design of the buildings necessitate any changes to 
the report’s recommendations, then a further report shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the relevant element of works being undertaken, and shall 
be constructed in accordance with that approval prior to occupation of the respective units. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of future residents of the development from internal and 
external noise. 
 

26. External artificial lighting 
 

Prior to the erection of any external lighting, a report setting out predicated light levels at 
residential properties and alongside the riverside Site of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI) shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The lighting thereby 
approved shall be provided in accordance with that detail. 
 
Artificial lighting to the development must conform to requirements to meet the Obtrusive Light 
Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental Zone – E2 contained within Table 1 
of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01, 
dated 2011.  Lighting situated on the riverside shall be designed so as to prevent light spill onto 
the river and bankside habitats. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure a safe and secure environment whilst safeguarding the amenities of 
existing/proposed adjoining residential occupiers, and preventing unacceptable impacts on the 

Page 46



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

SNCI along the River Avon. 
 

27. Retail/food and drink – hours of deliveries and refuse/recycling collection 
 
Activities relating to the deliveries and to the collection of refuse and recycling oat any B1 or A3 
unit hereby permitted shall only take place between the hours of 0800 and 1900 Monday to 
Saturday ad not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of existing/future nearby occupiers. 
 

28. Retail/food and drink – hours of operation 
 
Food and drinks uses (Use Class A3) hereby permitted shall only be open to customers between 
the hours of 0800 to 2330 Monday to Saturdays and 1000 to 2230 on Sundays and Bank 
Holidays. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of existing/future nearby occupiers. 
 

29. Noise from plant/equipment 
 
The rating level of any noise generated by plant and equipment as part of the development shall 
be at least 5dB below the background level as determined by BS4142: 1997-“Method of rating 
industrial noise affecting missed residential and industrial areas” at any time. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of existing/future nearby occupiers. 
 

30. Outdoor seating 
 
Details of the location of tables and chairs in external areas to be used by any of the ground floor 
units hereby permitted for outdoor eating and drinking shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the use of any external area for these purposes.  
Thereafter, the use of outdoor areas as such shall be carried out only in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: In order to safeguard the amenity of adjoining properties and to prevent obstruction of 
pedestrian/vehicular routes through the site. 
 

31. Flexible planning permission for units (A3/B1) 
 
This permission authorises units E4, E5, E6, E7, W5 and W6 to be used for either Use Class B1 
or Use Class A3 as defined in the Town and Country Planning Use (Classes) Order 1987, as 
amended, for a period of 10 years from the date of this decision. The last use of the premises prior 
to the expiry of this 10 year period shall be the authorised use thereafter, unless a further 
permission is granted. 
 
Reason: The uses are acceptable in accordance with the terms of the application, but also to 
retain control over the premises. 

 
32. Change of Use restriction. 
 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order), no development 
shall take place under Part 3, Class A of the Order without express consent of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

Page 47



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 15/04217/F: Land To North Paintworks Bristol BS4 3EH  
 

  

Reason: The provision of retail units (Use Class A1) in this location requires careful consideration 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
List of approved plans 
 
33. List of approved plans and drawings 

 
To follow at Committee 

 
 
INFORMATIVE:  
 
Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage Byelaws, the prior written 
consent of the Agency is required for any proposed works or structures in, under, over or within 8 
metres of the top of the bank of the River Avon, designated a 'main river'. The need for Flood Defence 
Consent is over and above the need for planning permission. To enquire as to the scope of our 
controls and to obtain an application form please email bridgwater.fdcs@environment-agency.gov.uk. 
 
The Council’s Emergency Planners should be consulted in relation to flood emergency response and 
evacuation arrangements for the site. We strongly recommend that the applicant prepares a Flood 
Warning and Evacuation Plan for future occupants. The Local Planning Authority may wish to secure 
this through an appropriate condition. We can confirm that the site does lie within a Flood Warning 
area. The Environment Agency does not normally comment on or approve the adequacy of flood 
emergency response and evacuation procedures accompanying development proposals, as we do 
not carry out these roles during a flood. Our involvement with this development during an emergency 
will be limited to delivering flood warnings to occupants/users. The Planning Practice Guide 
(Paragraph 057) places responsibilities on LPA’s to consult their Emergency Planners with regard to 
specific emergency planning issues relating to new development. Link to the relevant page: 
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change/making-
development-safe-from-flood-risk/what-are-the-important-considerations-for-flood-warning-and-
evacuation-plans. 

Page 48

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change/making-development-safe-from-flood-risk/what-are-the-important-considerations-for-flood-warning-and-evacuation-plans
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change/making-development-safe-from-flood-risk/what-are-the-important-considerations-for-flood-warning-and-evacuation-plans
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change/making-development-safe-from-flood-risk/what-are-the-important-considerations-for-flood-warning-and-evacuation-plans


Supporting Documents 
 

 
1. Land to North, Paintworks, Bristol 

 
1. Site Plan 
2. Front View 
3. Piazza View 
4. Pond View 
5. Ramp View 
 

Page 49



Page 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



09/12/16  10:49   Committee report 

 

Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
 

 
ITEM NO.  2 
 

 
WARD: Stoke Bishop CONTACT OFFICER: Charlotte Sangway 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road Bristol BS8   
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
16/01266/F 
 

 
Full Planning 

EXPIRY DATE: 2 May 2016 
 

Proposed pedestrian/cycle bridge over Bridge Valley Road. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Refuse 

 
AGENT: 

 
 
 
 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Dr Adrienn Tomor 
Frenchay Campus 
Coldharbour Lane 
Bristol 
BS16 1QY 
 

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

 

 
DO NOT SCALE 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7b



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F: Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

  

    
APPLICATION BACKGROUND 
 
The above application was considered by Development Control Committee B on 13th July 2016. 
The officer recommendation for the application was for refusal for the following reason: 
 
1. The proposal by reasons of its scale, form and siting and the loss of a significant number of 

trees would have a harmful impact on the landscape character and visual amenity of this 
area and would fail to preserve the character and special interest of The Downs and Clifton 
and Hotwells Conservation Areas. The proposals are concluded to be contrary to Sections 
11 and 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Section 72(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The proposal would also be 
contrary to local policies BCS9, BCS21 and BCS22 of the Core Strategy and DM17, DM26, 
DM27 and DM31 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (SADMP).  

 
Members resolved to grant permission for the proposed pedestrian/ cycle bridge subject to a legal 
agreement to require a financial contribution towards tree mitigation planting to compensate for the 
loss of trees proposed by the application, in accordance with the Bristol Tree Replacement 
Standard (BTRS). The proposal would result in the loss of 38 trees; 31 of which are Category 'C' 
trees (low quality) and 7 of which are Category 'B' trees (Moderate quality). The Bristol Tree 
Replacement Standard (BTRS) would require the replanting of 111 trees to compensate for this 
loss. However the application site is small and already heavily planted with trees; therefore 
replacement planting would need to be off-site via a financial contribution to enable the Council to 
undertake replanting on land within Bristol City Council’s control. The contribution would be 
£84,938.31 based on 111 trees at £765.21 per tree. 
 
 
APPLICATION UPDATE AND REASON FOR REFERRAL TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE 
 
Since the Committee resolution to grant approval, officers have engaged in discussions with the 
applicant and the Council’s Legal Team to seek the legal agreement for this contribution. However 
as the application site is not within the applicant’s ownership, this has not been possible. The 
Council’s Legal Team confirm that the owners of part of the site are the Master Wardens and 
Commonalty of Merchant Venturers of the City of Bristol (The Merchant Venturers). The remainder 
of the site is unregistered and comprises adopted highway. Any legal agreement to secure the 
financial contribution would need to be provided by a party who have a legal interest sufficient to 
bind the land and provide the Council with the ability to enforce the requirement if the terms of the 
legal agreement are not met. So in this case the legal agreement would need to be provided by the 
Merchant Venturers. 
 
The applicant has been notified of the above and has sought their own legal advice regarding this 
matter and has advised officers that the Merchant Venturers will not be able to sign up to the legal 
agreement. Consequently, it is not possible to secure the financial contribution required under the 
Bristol Tree Replacement Standard to mitigate for the loss of trees from the site. 
 
The application is therefore referred back to Committee for determination of whether they would 
continue to recommend the grant of approval without any compensatory tree planting. 
 
 

Page 56



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F: Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

  

KEY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Members have already accepted the landscape impact of the proposals in terms of the visual 
appearance of the physical bridge structure and consequential loss of trees from the site. While 
previously some tree replanting in the immediate vicinity of the site could have been achieved, this 
would be limited and would not completely mitigate the visual impact of the loss of the 38 trees 
proposed from the site (i.e. there would still appear a gap in the tree canopy cover).  
 
It is not possible to secure further tree planting through a legal agreement. Some, minimal tree 
planting on the site itself could be secured through a condition seeking a landscaping plan prior to 
the commencement of the development- this condition would be enforceable against the land 
owner. A planning condition seeking tree planting outside of the red site boundary line would not 
meet the tests set out within national planning guidance for the use of conditions due to problems 
with enforceability. 
 
The key consideration before Members is therefore whether the failure to comply with the Council’s 
Core Strategy Policy BCS9 and Development Management Policy DM17 through failing to provide 
tree compensation would be outweighed by the other benefits of the proposals. 
 
Whilst any refusal clearly would not enable the proposed bridge to be built unless a permission was 
obtained, this outcome would not negate the decision made by Committee to grant planning 
permission for the bridge. The Committee’s original resolution to grant planning permission would 
still stand as a material planning consideration. Therefore, if an appropriate legal agreement could 
be completed in future, the promoters of the bridge could make a new application, which would 
have to be considered in the light of the previous resolution and the accompanying draft agreement 
as material considerations to which the committee could attach such weight to as it deemed 
appropriate. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Officers recommend the refusal of the application on the basis of the failure to mitigate the removal 
of existing trees contrary to Policies BCS9 of the Bristol Core Strategy and Policy DM17 of the Site 
Allocations and Development Management Policies. 

Page 57



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 1 of 13 

    
 
SUMMARY 
 
The application relates to a site situated within Clifton ward at the junction of Bridge Valley Road, 
Clifton Down, The Promenade (pedestrian route) and Ladies Mile/ Downs Circular Road. The site 
has a number of designations in terms of its heritage and conservation value (see Site Description 
below). 
 
The application has been proposed by the Friends of the Downs and Avon Gorge (FODAG) group 
and has been put together by a Senior Lecturer in Engineering at the University of the West of 
England, a specialist in the design of stone bridges. The current application follows a pre-
application enquiry on the site and a planning application that was subsequently withdrawn by the 
applicant following concerns raised by officers regarding the visual and landscape impact of the 
proposals. The proposal is for a stone bridge to provide pedestrian and cycle access crossing 
Bridge Valley and ancillary paths and ramps giving access to the bridge. The bridge would measure 
approximately 80m in length (including ramps) and 5.0m wide with a segregated footpath and cycle 
path. The application requires the removal of 38 trees to facilitate the proposals (31 of 'C' grade 
quality and 7 of 'B grade quality). 
 
Public consultation on the application has elicited 166 representations to the proposals- 148 in 
support and 14 in objection. The comments in support welcome the opportunity of the proposal for 
knowledge sharing and as an engineering project, enhanced safety for pedestrians and cyclists and 
the design and sustainability of the proposed stone bridge. The objections received were on the 
basis of the landscape impact of the proposal, the siting and the lack of consideration of other 
options. 
 
The key considerations for this application relate to the impact on the landscape character of the 
Conservation Area, impact on green infrastructure and nature conservation and transport and 
access matters. The officer recommendation is for the refusal of the application on the grounds of 
impact on landscape quality and the character and special interest of the Conservation Areas. 
 
    
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site forms part of Clifton Down and is within Bristol City Council ownership, under 
the management of The Downs Committee and the stewardship of The Society of Merchant 
Venturers. The site is designated as forming part of The Downs Important Open Space and Local 
Historic Park and Garden. The site is within The Downs Conservation Area and adjoining the Clifton 
and Hotwells Conservation Area. The site is also within a Special Area of Conservation (SAC), Site 
of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI) and a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). 
 
There are also a number of listed structures on The Downs including Alderman Proctor's Drinking 
Fountain close to Clifton Down (Grade II listed) and several listed lamp posts (Grade II listed). The 
properties on Clifton Down are Grade II listed and there are a number of Grade II* listed properties 
further south along Clifton Down. 
 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
15/01128/F- Proposed pedestrian/cycle bridge over Bridge Valley Road.  
 
The above application was withdrawn following concerns raised by officers regarding the visual and 
landscape impact of the proposal and loss of green infrastructure. Concerns were also raised that 

Page 58



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 2 of 13 

alternative options to improve access with a lesser visual impact had not been sufficiently explored 
and that the proposed bridge would be premature in light of The Clifton and Durdham Downs Place 
and Movement Framework being brought forward by The Downs Committee. 
 
13/04123/PREAPP- Proposed bridge for the junction of Bridge Valley Road, Clifton Down and 
Ladies Mile. 
 
 
APPLICATION 
 
The application proposal is for the installation of a combined pedestrian and cycle bridge with 
associated access (ramps, paths and barriers). The proposed bridge would be approximately 80m 
in length (including ramps) and 5.0m in width with additional footpaths/ cyclepaths leading to the 
bridge. The bridge itself and ramps/ paths leading to the bridge would be segregated as a separate 
cycle path and footpath. The cycle path width would be 2.5m and the pedestrian lane 2.0m in width. 
An additional 0.5m in width has been allowed on the South side of the bridge for users to stop (e.g. 
to enjoy the view).  
 
The additional proposed footpaths/ cycle paths are required to give access to the bridge from 
existing roads given that cycling is prohibited on The Downs and The Promenade. Barriers would 
be required to footpaths/ cycle paths where they cross The Promenade to prevent conflict between 
cyclists and pedestrians and to prevent vehicles driving on to the bridge. 
 
The proposed materials of the bridge would be Limestone with bonded gravel surfacing 
demarcated/ signed to indicate the cycle land and pedestrian lane. The bridge parapets would be 
1.1m high and 25cm thick with a 45cm wide capstone. Lighting columns are proposed to illuminate 
the bridge surface access. 
 
The application proposes the removal of 38 trees to facilitate the proposals (31 of 'C' grade quality 
and 7 of 'B grade quality) - please refer to Appendix B (Tree Protection Plan 15305-BVR-TPP-AM) 
of the Arboricultural Statement. 
 
 
PRE APPLICATION COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
The submission of a formal Statement of Community Involvement is not a requirement of this 
application given that it is not classified as 'major' development. However, the applicant has 
undertaken community consultation and this is outlined within their Heritage and Planning 
Statement (Section 4). They state that the design of the bridge was developed in consultation with 
the Downs Committee, the Friends of the Downs and Avon Gorge group (FODAG), Bristol City 
Council departments, various access groups and local interest groups including via an Open Day at 
Engineers House. 
 
In response to the consultation a number of amendments were made to the design, for example 
inclusion of a segregated cycle lane as requested by the Downs Committee; allowing suitable lane 
width for two-way pedestrian/ cycle traffic; realignment of the bridge and ramp design. 
 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 
A site notice and press notice have been posted/ published and neighbours have been consulted 
by individual letter. 166 written representations have been received to the proposals on the 
following grounds. 
 

Page 59



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 3 of 13 

Representations in support (148 representations): 
 
It is noted that many of the representations in support of the proposals are made by parties not 
local to Bristol. 
 
The Friends of the Downs and Avon Gorge (FOD+AG) commented (in summary) that: 
 
'The proposal is fully supported by FOD+AG. Clifton Down, Durdham Downs and Avon Gorge are 
one very special, cultural and historic place but this unique environment has been severed by 
Bridge Valley Road. The Downs Management Plan has identified the need to create a safe circular 
path allowing people to access the Gorge from the Downs and encourage more pedestrian and 
cyclist movement around the Downs. The proposed bridge will cater for pedestrians, school 
children, the disabled, the elderly and others who find the current crossing dangerous to negotiate. 
It will provide a focal point and social link and contribute to the improved circular pedestrian route.' 
 
Other representations in support are summarised below: 
- The proposal offers significant safety benefits for users as a crossing and would safely link 

the separate parts of the Downs; 
- The proposal would encourage healthier lifestyles and mobility;  
- The proposal would perfectly match the surroundings and be an excellent addition to the 

neighbourhood that would add to the ambience of the streetscape.  
- The stone bridge would be a more beautiful, sustainable and long lasting solution with lower 

maintenance requirements than a steel bridge and would add to the natural beauty of the 
area; 

- The project is a significant opportunity for Clifton and the South West as the construction of 
the first large stone bridge in Europe for more than 100 years and would bring cultural 
benefits and be an attraction; 

- The construction project would involve the local community and local apprentices and it 
would make Bristol a hub of knowledge in Europe for this type of engineering project. 

 
Representations in objection (14 representations): 
 
The Stoke Bishop Residents' Planning Group/ Stoke Bishop Forum have commented as follows (in 
summary): The group considers that in principle a bridge of some sort is acceptable, though are not 
convinced of its necessity in traffic terms. There is a safe pedestrian crossing near the zoo but the 
group recognise that both cyclists and pedestrians cross Bridge Valley Road at the top of the hill. 
However, the proposed bridge is a substantial structure which seems heavy and obtrusive in this 
place. In particular, its width seems excessive, the dismount on the Promenade side is a very bulky 
structure which would impact on views of the tree-lined Promenade and is very close to the 
Coronation Oak. The proposal requires substantial loss of trees, which would substantially change 
the character of the Downs in this location, regardless of the replanting proposals. The proposal 
may result in conflict between users. In the event that a bridge is deemed necessary, a lighter 
bridge with lesser impact would be preferred. It is suggested that a competition be held to find a 
solution, depending on funding. 
 
Councillor John Goulandris objects to the application on behalf of residents that the site is an 
extremely sensitive location and the proposal would harm visual amenity. A stone bridge would not 
be in keeping with the historic environment and loss of so many trees is unacceptable and would 
harm the natural environment. The mix of pedestrian and cyclist users will result in accidents. There 
are structural concerns regarding the stability of the cliffs. There is no discernible need for the 
bridge. 
 
Bristol Civic Society commented that while they consider the broad aims of the proposal 
(connectivity, safety, skills training and durability) to be admirable; they consider the proposal to be 

Page 60



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 4 of 13 

harmful to the wooded, rural character of Bridge Valley Road and the open and parkland character 
of the Promenade, which they feel could only absorb a light structure without harmful effects.  
 
Clifton and Hotwells Improvement Society (CHIS) questioned the need for a bridge in this location 
and raised concerns regarding the width of the bridge and the inclusion of a cycle lane which 
increases the size of the structure. Some considered that reviving outmoded technology was 
inappropriate and raised concerns regarding the funding of bridge construction and maintenance. 
Further research would be needed into the impact on Bridge Valley Road during construction. CHIS 
are pleased that the Highways Department is considering the possibility of a roundabout in this 
location. The application is the only way of separating pedestrian and disabled users of this 
crossing and it is agreed that both traffic lights and a zebra crossing would not be appropriate. 
Though the bridge is a bulky structure, the nature of the site and existing tree cover ensures that its 
visual impact is minimal. CHIS are concerned about the potential approach paths, particularly from 
the Promenade and the circular access ramps. 
 
The Bristol Tree Forum objects to the loss of so many trees, especially the B grade trees, and 
comments that mitigation planting in the woodland will not recreate the visual amenity that these 
trees currently provide. The design seems not to have considered existing trees at all, contravening 
Policy BCS9 para 2. 
 
The Conservation Advisory Panel strongly objects to the proposal for the following reasons: 
 
"The Panel reiterates its previous meeting minute. It supports the position of Natural England. The 
bridge proposal is an inappropriately designed bridge in a very sensitive location. The need for a 
bridge in this location needs to be established through the Development Plan process before a 
development proposal is formulated. If a bridge in this location is considered appropriate then the 
design of this should be open to a competition. Furthermore a viable economic case needs to be 
made for this. 
 
April 2015 minute on withdrawn application 15/01128/F: 
The principle of a bridge in this particular location is questioned, as there is a greater need to deal 
with the design of the existing junction. Bristol is a city of innovative bridges and a historicist 
pastiche is not appropriate. The architectural language of the proposed design is considered to be 
ill-conceived and poorly designed. The solid masonry mass would be a visual intrusion in this area 
of natural beauty. In addition the approach works to the bridge were not detailed and would have at 
least as great an impact on the conservation area as the bridge itself. The width of 4.5m as 
proposed is questioned and is considered to be insufficient for a combination of moving pedestrians 
and cyclists and viewing. A balustrade of 1.4m high would be required for cyclists' safety and this 
must not be added at a later date. There is a need to provide an archaeological assessment of the 
area covered by the bridge and access works. Surfaces, grades and appearance need greater 
consideration and detail." 
 
Other public comments received objecting to the proposals are summarised below: 
- Resolution of the access issues requires independent and transparent consultation.  A 

pedestrian crossing/ traffic calming measures should be employed instead. Many people would 
continue to use the existing short cut across the road or the existing crossing 200m away. The 
proposal would distract drivers negotiating the incline and sharp bend and be vulnerable to 
damage from vehicles. The proposal may result in conflicts between cyclists and pedestrians. 
Cycling on the Downs is not permitted and should not be encouraged. 

- The proposals are of a significant scale and would have a significant negative and intrusive 
impact on the Promenade and surrounding area. A modern lightweight pedestrian-only bridge 
would be more appropriate. The proposed bridge design should be modern. 

- Impact on Site of Special Scientific Interest and the proposed lighting would detract from the 
current night time "dark sky" aspect of the Downs area.  

Page 61



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 5 of 13 

- Cliff stability is an issue.  
- The proposal would attract anti-social behaviour. 
- The costs of the proposal appear to have been underestimated and there is no indication of the 

funding of future repair and maintenance works. * 
- At the Neighbourhood Partnership meeting (29 March 2016) it was agreed that the 

Neighbourhood Partnership would allocate £15000 of Community Infrastructure Levy to fund a 
design study for junction improvements at Clifton Down Road/ Bridge Valley Road. This was 
deferred for 6 months pending a 20mph assessment and the outcome of The Downs Place and 
Movement Framework. 

 
*  NB The costs of the development are not a planning consideration, though the maintenance 
costs would need to be considered should the Council wish to adopt the structure. 
 
 
OTHER COMMENTS 
 
City Centre Projects (Public Art) has commented as follows:- 
 
The proposed masonry arch bridge - developed with historical construction skills and community 
involvement - would offer scope for the involvement of an artists and crafts people and contributing 
to its design. 
 
Urban Design has commented as follows:- 
 
Concerns are raised regarding the scheme and withdrawal of the application is recommended. 
Please refer to Key Issues for further details. 
 
Transport Development Management has commented as follows:- 
 
The principle of the bridge is considered acceptable in highways terms but practical considerations 
are significant in terms of ensuring the structure would not impede traffic flow/ visibility and the 
following matters would need to be addressed: 
 
Design 
- The proposed layout of the bridge lanes may lead to conflict; 
- The detailed construction of the structure would need to go through the Approved in Principle 

(AiP) process following a decision on the planning application; 
- Large scale plans and details of the existing public right of ways (PROWs) and any proposed 

pathways connecting into the existing network are required; 
- Confirmation by applicant needed if bridge adoption by BCC would be sought. If yes, a financial 

contribution towards ongoing maintenance would be sought; 
 
Justification 
- The applicant should include analysis of any personal injury collisions (PICs) at this junction 

within their Transport and Movement Statement; 
- The applicant has considered alternative options to improving access at this junction, but has 

not considered traffic management/ traffic calming measures as a means of slowing traffic. 
 
Management 
- A Construction Management Plan and Condition Survey would be required via condition. 
 
Contaminated Land Environmental Protection has commented as follows:- 
 
There are no objections subject to conditions. (See background papers for full details). 

Page 62



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 6 of 13 

 
Nature Conservation Officer has commented as follows:- 
 
An Appropriate Assessment has been carried out and supplied to Natural England, as required. It is 
concluded that the proposal would not result in any adverse effect on the Avon Gorge Special Area 
of Conservation, Site of Special Scientific Interest, Site of Nature Conservation Interest or any 
protected species. No objections are raised to the proposals subject to detailed conditions. (See 
background papers for full details). 
 
Natural England has commented as follows:- 
 
There is no objection to the proposal. In their letter dated 15 April 2016 they raised questions in 
relation to the potential effects of the proposals on the Avon Gorge Woodlands Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) and Avon Gorge Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). Based on the 
information provided, the extent of permanent habitat loss within the SAC/ SSSI boundary is 
relatively small and the area is not thought to currently contain any qualifying features. Natural 
England agrees with the local planning authority's conclusion in the Appropriate Assessment that 
the works are unlikely to result in an adverse effect on the integrity of the SAC provided that any 
planning permission includes the recommended planning conditions. (Comment received 22 June 
2016; see background papers for full details). 
 
Crime Reduction Unit has commented as follows:- 
 
There are no objections subject to details of lighting and approaches. (See background papers for 
full details). 
 
Flood Risk Manager has commented as follows:- 
 
No objection. (See background papers for full details). 
 
 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012 
 
Bristol Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011) 
BCS9 Green Infrastructure 
BCS10 Transport and Access Improvements 
BCS13 Climate Change 
BCS14 Sustainable Energy 
BCS15 Sustainable Design and Construction 
BCS16 Flood Risk and Water Management 
BCS21 Quality Urban Design 
BCS22 Conservation and the Historic Environment 
BCS23 Pollution 
 
Bristol Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) 
DM1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM14 The health impacts of development 
DM15 Green infrastructure provision 
DM16 Open space for recreation 
DM17 Development involving existing green infrastructure 
DM19 Development and nature conservation 
DM23 Transport development management 

Page 63



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 7 of 13 

DM26 Local character and distinctiveness 
DM27 Layout and form 
DM28 Public realm 
DM29 Design of new buildings 
DM31 Heritage assets 
DM33 Pollution control, air quality and water quality 
DM34 Contaminated land 
DM35 Noise mitigation 
DM37 Unstable land 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
SPD5 Sustainable Design and Construction (February 2006)Supplementary Planning 
Documents 
SPD7 Archaeology and Development (March 2006)Supplementary Planning Documents 
Planning Obligations - Supplementary Planning Document - Adopted 27 Sept 2012 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Clifton & Hotwells Conservation Area Character Appraisal 
PAN 2 Conservation Area Enhancement Statements (November 1993) 
 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
(A) WOULD THE PRINCIPLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT BE ACCEPTABLE IN LAND USE 
TERMS? 
 
The application site has a number of designations being part of The Downs, including nature 
conservation designations (refer to Site Description above). In land use terms, the site is 
designated as Important Open Space. 
 
Policy DM17 (of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies document- SADMP) 
states that development on part or all of, an Important Open Space will not be permitted unless the 
development is ancillary to the open space use. The proposed bridge structure would be 
considered to be ancillary to this open space use given that it would provide improved access to the 
area of open space and for these reasons; there is no objection in principle in land use terms. 
 
 
(B) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BE ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF ITS VISUAL 
AND LANDSCAPE IMPACT AND WOULD IT SAFEGUARD THE SPECIAL INTEREST OF ALL 
RELEVANT HERITAGE ASSETS? 
 
Impact on the Local Historic Park and Garden and Conservation Areas 
 
Development is required by national and local planning policy and legislation to give considerable 
weight and importance to preserving the special interest, character and setting of Conservation 
Areas (in this case The Downs and neighbouring Clifton & Hotwells Conservation Areas) and to 
conserving local historic parks and gardens as heritage assets. Sections 66(1) and 72(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Policies BCS22 and DM31 of the 
Local Plan refer.  
 
The proposed site of the bridge is a wooded area at the periphery of The Downs and the Avon 
Gorge. The Promenade (adjacent) is a historic, formal pedestrian route lined by mature trees, 

Page 64



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 8 of 13 

giving way to open areas of grassland and the woodland lining Bridge Valley Road and the Avon 
Gorge. The bridge would be around 80m in length (including ramps) and 5.0m in width with new 
footpath/ cycle way structures leading up to the bridge, and would be constructed from stone.  
 
The structure would be of a substantial scale appearing highly prominent and as a significant 
intervention into both the natural, landscaped character of the Gorge and the formal character of 
The Promenade. The proposed loss of trees (38 in total) would result in a gap in the wooded 
character of the area thereby diminishing its landscape value. It is the view of officers that the 
proposals would have an unacceptably harmful impact on the special landscaped character of The 
Downs and Clifton & Hotwells Conservation Areas through the introduction of a structure of such a 
substantial scale and the loss of trees within this sensitive and historic setting.  
 
The application submission does not demonstrate whether other, less intrusive bridge design 
options have been considered and it is possible that a more lightweight design and materials would 
have a lesser impact. The application submission (see the Transport Statement) sets out the 
alternative options considered by the applicant for highways improvements in this location- which 
have been ruled out by the applicant on the grounds of ability to meet the needs of all users, 
feasibility and highways safety.  
 
The Council's City Design Group has recently produced the 'Clifton and Durdham Downs: Place 
and Movement Framework' on behalf of The Downs Committee. This document sets out 3 
scenarios for improving access to/ around The Downs- one of which includes improvement of the 
Bridge Valley Road junction for all users through redesign while 'avoiding the adverse landscape 
and visual impact of a more costly pedestrian/ cycle bridge structure across Bridge Valley Road.' 
This document is not a planning policy or guidance document and therefore while it can be given 
some weight, this is not full weight in planning terms. 
 
Summary: There are highways safety concerns in this location given the nature of the road network/ 
existing crossing facilities and access could be improved. The proposal therefore offers clear public 
benefits in addressing this issue. However, there are fundamental concerns with the proposed 
structure in terms of its visual impact on this landscape and the Downs and Clifton & Hotwells 
Conservation Areas due to its scale and form that would not be outweighed by these public 
benefits. Officers are therefore unable to recommend approval of this application as they would 
consider it to be contrary to planning policy. 
 
It is noted that alternative options are under consideration by other parties in terms of addressing 
access issues in this location; however the application proposal must be judged on its own merits 
and these options cannot be taken into consideration in the assessment of this application. 
 
The proposals are considered by officers to be contrary to Sections 11 and 12 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The proposal would also be contrary to local policies BCS9, BCS21 
and BCS22 of the Core Strategy and DM17, DM26, DM27 and DM31 of the Site Allocations and 
Development Management Policies (SADMP). 
 
 
Impact on nearby listed buildings and structures 
 
The nearest directly affected listed structure (Grade II) is Alderman Proctor's water fountain situated 
on the east side of Clifton Down. While the proposal would have an impact on the setting of the 
fountain through the introduction of increased hard landscaping and infrastructure; this would not be 
considered to be harmful such that refusal of the application would be recommended on this basis. 
The proposals would also safeguard the setting of neighbouring listed buildings and lampposts, and 
would be in accordance with Section 12 of the NPPF and Section 16 (2) of the Planning (Listed 

Page 65



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 9 of 13 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, which requires development to preserve the special 
interest and setting of listed buildings. 
 
 
(C) WOULD THE PROPOSAL BE ACCEPTABLE IN RESPECT OF ITS IMPACTS ON GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND NATURE CONSERVATION? 
 
Green infrastructure/ trees 
 
Policy BCS9 of the Core Strategy states that loss of green infrastructure will only be acceptable 
where it is allowed for as part of an adopted Development Plan document or is necessary, on 
balance, to achieve the aims of the Core Strategy. Appropriate mitigation will be required. While 
local planning policy (DM23 refers) encourages the enhancement of the pedestrian and cycle 
network; the creation of a bridge in this location is not an objective of the Local Plan.  
 
As outlined above, the proposal would result in the loss of 38 trees; 31 of which are Category 'C' 
trees (low quality) and 7 of which are Category 'B' trees (Moderate quality). The Arboriculture 
Officer has advised that the trees to be lost are not specimens of particular individual value and 
raises no objections on that basis, though there would be an inevitable landscape impact through 
the loss of this number of trees.  
 
The applicant proposes that compensatory replanting be undertaken in an area adjacent to the site 
of the proposed bridge. The Bristol Tree Replacement Standard (BTRS) would require the 
replanting of 111 trees. However, the area identified for replanting (Site B) is small and already 
heavily planted and therefore replacement planting would need to be off-site via a financial 
contribution towards the Council undertaking this replanting. The contribution would be significant 
(£84,938.31) based on 111 trees at £765.21 per tree. In addition, any replanting on the Downs may 
need to go through a further detailed consultation process with relevant parties given the sensitivity 
of the environment and the large number of new trees to be replanted. There is no guarantee that 
suitable sites for all trees could be found on the Downs.  
 
In the event that Members are minded to approve this application, a legal agreement undertaking to 
pay this contribution would be required from the application prior to a decision on the application 
being taken.  
 
Summary: While the individual trees to be lost are not of significant individual value, it remains the 
view of officers that through its impacts, including the loss of a large number of trees, the 
application would result in an and a harmful impact on the landscape quality of the area and the 
character and appearance of The Downs and Clifton and Hotwells Conservation Areas, as set out 
under Key Issue B) above. 
 
 
Nature conservation 
 
The application site has a number of important nature conservation designations (refer to 'Site 
Background' above). The proposal has been reviewed by the Council's Nature Conservation Officer 
and Natural England in accordance with the requirements of The Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 and the Conservation of Habitats and Species (Amendment) 
Regulations 2012 and all other national and local planning policies (Local Plan policies BCS9 and 
DM19 refer). The Council's Nature Conservation Officer has carried out an Appropriate 
Assessment, as required by Natural England, who raises no objections to the proposals subject to 
appropriate conditions. 
 
 

Page 66



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 10 of 13 

(D) WOULD THE PROPOSAL BE ACCEPTABLE IN HIGHWAYS TERMS? 
 
The proposed development would be acceptable in highways terms in principle as it addresses 
objectives of improving access for all users. However there would be significant practical 
considerations that would need to be addressed through the submission of further detailed plans 
following the planning application stage, as outlined below. 
 
It is proposed that the bridge would be adopted by the Council following construction. As proposed, 
the bridge structure would not meet adoptable standards in its current form. However in the event 
that permission is granted, detailed construction drawings would need to be agreed by the Council's 
Structures and Highways Teams to ensure that these standards would be met. Were this to result 
in amendments to the planning permission, then an application to vary the permission may be 
necessary. Some changes may be minor and not require planning amendments (e.g. surfacing 
materials) whereas others may do so (e.g. gradient of ramps). Through this process it would be 
ensured that the structure would meet an adoptable standard and provide appropriate access for all 
users including those with disabilities. A financial contribution to the Council would be required for 
on-going maintenance of the structure, which would be secured via highways agreement outside 
the planning process. 
 
Should Members be minded to recommend the approval of the application planning conditions 
would be recommended to obtain any further details necessary for planning purposes as well as an 
Advice Note to the applicant advising them of the highways agreement process. The following 
further elements would need to be addressed either by planning condition or separate highways 
agreement: 
 

- The segregated lanes (with additional 0.5m width for pedestrians) are over complicated and 
it would be simpler to have just two segregated lanes for cycles and pedestrians- or to move 
the 'reservation' lane to the same side as the pedestrian lane; 

- Balustrades would be required to a height of 1.4m; 
- Ramp/ bridge gradients should be no greater than 1:20; 
- Detailed lighting plans would be required (to an adoptable standard); 
- Detailed constructions plans and methodology would be required; 
- Large scale plans and details of the proposed pathways are required; 
- The barriers to the Promenade should be replaced by bollards; 
- Appropriate signage would be required; 
- Further consideration of junctions with the highways network would be needed; 
- Further drainage details are sought; 
- A Construction Management Plan would be required; 

 
 
(E) WOULD THE PROPOSALS SAFEGUARD RESIDENTIAL AMENITY? 
 
The proposed development would be concluded to safeguard the residential amenity of 
neighbouring residential occupiers and the environmental amenity of the area. Should Members be 
minded to approve the application, conditions seeking further details of the lighting to the bridge 
would be require to ensure appropriate light levels for this setting. 
 
 
(F) HAVE SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE CONSIDERATIONS BEEN ADDRESSED? 
 
The proposed development is exempt from the requirement to submit a Sustainability Statement 
and Energy Strategy given that it is not for a building. However, the application submission 
(Heritage and Planning Statement- Section 8.2.5) makes reference to the development's 
contribution to addressing objectives for achieving healthy sustainable communities including 

Page 67



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 11 of 13 

through environmental, economic and social sustainability. 
 
The main construction material proposed (limestone) is a highly durable, low maintenance material 
and can be recycled. It is possible that limestone can be locally sourced, though importation is an 
alternative and would result in an increased carbon footprint. More generally, the loss of trees 
would be contrary to wider sustainability objectives, though through replanting that could be 
mitigated. The applicant states that the proposed materials are an environmentally sustainable 
choice and carbon neutral and that the proposal has been included as a national pilot study for the 
new BREAAM Infrastructure scheme by the Building Research Establishment (BRE). They also 
state that the construction project would benefit the local economy through employment and 
knowledge-building opportunities; and in terms of social sustainability, the proposal includes a 
social space acting as a community focal point.  
 
Overall, there are no objections to the proposals on these grounds such that refusal would be 
recommended on this basis. 
 
 
(G) HAVE LAND STABILITY AND LAND CONTAMINATION MATTERS BEEN ADDRESSED? 
 
Land contamination: There are no objections in this regard subject to conditions, should Members 
be minded to recommend approval of the application. 
 
Coal: The site is within an area of low development risk as designated by the Coal Authority and 
there are no objections or further information required on this basis. 
 
Land stability: The application has been accompanied by a Geological Assessment that provides a 
basic desktop study of the characteristics of the site in terms of geology and natural hazards and 
which concludes that the site is in an area where there are no superficial deposits and the bedrock 
is virtually at existing ground level. Therefore the present bridge design is unlikely to have any 
effect on the stability of the Avon Gorge at the point of its proposed construction. 
 
Policy DM37 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies Document (SADMP) 
states that in instances where remediation of land stability issues are required, that the further 
exploration of these can be subject of planning conditions. Should approval of the application be 
granted, then an appropriate condition would be recommended to secure further geological 
investigation as required, which may require specialist advice from outside the Council. 
 
 
(H) ARE THERE ANY OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS? 
 
Equalities impact assessment 
 
During the determination of the application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme 
in relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected 
characteristics. These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 
 
The proposal is for pedestrian and cyclist access via a new bridge and different groups would 
therefore have different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation to this particular 
proposed development. While the approval of this application would have implications for these 
different groups, it is considered that any outstanding matters can be addressed to ensure that the 
proposals would not have any significant adverse impact upon different groups or implications for 
the Equalities Act 2010 (please refer to Transport Key Issue for further details). 
 

Page 68



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 12 of 13 

In terms of economic factors and employment opportunities, in the event of an approval, there is an 
opportunity for workers/contractors in its construction to be secured from local workers via a 
planning condition. In this event, the proposals would offer local employment and economic 
opportunities. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
In conclusion, refusal of the application is recommended on the grounds of the landscape and 
Conservation Area impact of the proposals. While the benefits of the proposals in terms in terms of 
access improvements for all users are welcomed and recognised, these benefits would not be 
concluded to outweigh the landscape harm arising from the proposed development and harmful 
impact on The Downs and Clifton & Hotwells Conservation Areas. 
 
 
HOW MUCH COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) IS PAYABLE? 
 
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a 
new dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of 
buildings in lawful use, are exempt from CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and 
therefore no CIL is payable. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED REFUSED 
The following reason(s) for refusal are associated with this decision: 
 
Reason(s) 
 
 1. The proposal by reasons of its scale, form and siting and the loss of a significant number of 

trees would have a harmful impact on the landscape character and visual amenity of this 
area and would fail to preserve the character and special interest of The Downs and Clifton 
and Hotwells Conservation Areas. The proposals are concluded to be contrary to Sections 
11 and 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Section 72(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The proposal would also be 
contrary to local policies BCS9, BCS21 and BCS22 of the Core Strategy and DM17, DM26, 
DM27 and DM31 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (SADMP). 

 
 
Advice(s) 
 
1.  Refused Applications Deposited Plans/Documents 
 

The plans that were formally considered as part of the above application are as follows:- 
 
1:1250 Site Location Plan, received 7 March 2016 

 1:2500 Site Location Plan, received 7 March 2016 
 1:5000 Site Location Plan, received 7 March 2016 
 10-01 Current Site Layout Plan, received 7 March 2016 
 20-01 Proposed Bridge With Circular Ramp, received 7 March 2016 
 30-01 Ramp 1, received 7 March 2016 
 30-02 Ramp 2, received 7 March 2016 
 30-03 Ramp Sections, received 7 March 2016 
 40-01 Elevations (NE & SW), received 7 March 2016 
 40-02 Elevations (SE & NW), received 7 March 2016 

Page 69



Item no. 2 
Development Control Committee B – 13 July 2016 
Application No. 16/01266/F : Land Between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 
Bristol BS8   
 

1-Jul-16 Page 13 of 13 

 40-03 Ground Levels, received 7 March 2016 
 50-01 Sections 1, received 7 March 2016 
 50-02 Sections 2, received 7 March 2016 
 50-03 SUDS, received 7 March 2016 
 60-01 Works 1, received 7 March 2016 
 60-02 Works 2, received 7 March 2016 
 70-01 Trees, received 7 March 2016 
 70-02 Trees & Works, received 7 March 2016 
 90-01 Bats & Badgers, received 7 March 2016 
 90-01 Lighting 1, received 7 March 2016 
 90-02 Lighting 2, received 7 March 2016 
 Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Method Statement & Tree Protection Plan, received 7 

March 2016 
 Appendix A - H, received 7 March 2016 
 Construction Statement, received 7 March 2016 
 Ecology Statement, received 7 March 2016 
 Ecology Survey Update, received 7 March 2016 
 Geological Report, received 7 March 2016 
 Heritage Statement, received 7 March 2016 
 Transport & Moving Statement, received 7 March 2016 
 Supporting Statement, received 7 March 2016 
 Design & Access Statement, received 7 March 2016 
 Whitebeam Survey, received 7 March 2016 
  
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
City Centre Projects (Public Art) 23 April 2016 
Urban Design 19 April 2016 
Contaminated Land Environmental Protection 3 May 2016 
Nature Conservation Officer 9 June 2016 
Natural England 18 April 2016 
Crime Reduction Unit 30 March 2016 
Flood Risk Manager 13 April 2016 
  
 

 

Page 70



Supporting Documents 
 

 
2. Land between Ladies Mile & Clifton Down Bridge Valley Road 

 
1. Site location plan 
2. Proposed bridge layout 
3. Elevations 
4. Tree removal and protection plan 
5. Proposed images 
 

Page 71



Adrienn Tomor
University of the
West of England

Dec 11, 2014 18:01Scale 1:2500

Site Location Plan

67

62

Vica
rag

e

26

9

2
Redgrave

Theatre

(Clifton College)

School
House

40

Cottage
Glenavon

7

Sutton House

10

50

9

The Clifton Pavillon

Pavilion

48

El Sub Sta

5

11

Percival Court
3

1 to 18

Station
Pumping

Chatford House

Merchants Hall

Hardelot

2

1

7

5

Terrace Theatre

Auburn House

Cottage
Cottage

Cliftonbank House

Auckland

55Cote

Lodge

Tellisford

House

Lodge

Alderman Proctor's

Cottage Cottage

House

Roxburgh

The Blue House

Tellisford

Drinking Fountain

Duncan

Cottage

Trinmore

Roxburgh

Cottage

Mansion House

Trigon House

Mansion House

Cottage

Eaton House

Duncan

Merchants

Glenavon

Felixstowe

Brunel House

Jubilee

PC

C
A

N
Y

N
G

E

Sub Sta
El

T
h

e
 P

ro
m

e
n

a
d

e

C
O

L
L
E

G
E

 F
IE

L
D

S

P
E
R
C
IV

A
L R

O
A
D

CLIF
TO

N D
O

W
N

P
O

R
T

W
A

Y

B
R

ID
G

E
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D

LB

Trees

TreesS
M

Clifton Down

S
lo

p
in

g
 m

a
s
o

n
ry

Playing Field

El Sub Sta

Mud

Mud

M
e
a
n
 H

ig
h
 W

a
te

r

2a

FelixstoweHouse

1a
1

T
h
e
 P

ro
m

e
n
a
d
e

R
iv

e
r A

v
o
n

P
a
th

32

30

28

Hallwards House

VALLEY

CLIF
TO

N D
O

W
N

B
R
ID

G
E

ROAD

C
L
IF

T
O

N
 D

O
W

N

CECIL
 R

O
AD

C
O

LLEG
E

R
O

A
D

Bollard

LB

Trees

Trees

El Sub Sta

S
lo

p
in

g
 m

a
s
o
n
ry

Coronation
Oak

Monkey Temple

Butterfly Forest

GP

PathP
a
th

Path

M
e
a
n
 H

ig
h
 W

a
te

r

GP

P
a
th

New Zigzag
(path)

38

36

The
Coulson
Centre

34

C
LI

FT
O

N
 D

O
W

N

Shelter

TCB

(fixed yellow)

Cleeve Quarry

River Light

Mast

(T
eleco

m
m

unica
tio

n)

Trees
Trees

Trees

Car Park

Playground

Bristol Zoo Gardens

Twilight World

Livingstone's Bat Enclosure

Tropical Bird
House

P
a
th

 (
u
m

)

Shelter

CLIFTON

Reptile
House

Aquarium

Trees

D
W

71.9m

12.8m

87.5m

85.6m

Maze

T
u
n
n
e
l

68.9m

67.7m

68.6m

67.4m

68.9m

11.6m

11.6m

68.3m

68.0m
68.6m

74.1m

68.9m

69.5m

68.3m
60.7m

12.2m

9.1m

49.7m

11.9m

Clifton Down

Avon Gorge
Clifton Down

A
v
o
n
 W

a
lk

w
a
y

T
ra

c
k

B
o
ro

 C
o
n
s
t 
&

 U
A

 B
d
y

D
e
f

B
o
ro

 C
o
n
s
t &

 W
a
rd

 B
d
y

C
o
 C

o
n
s
t 
&

 C
P

 B
d
y

C
R

Def

S
 T

k

F
W

U
n
d

Boro Const & Ward BdyCR

F
W

U
n
d

C
R

B
or

o 
C

on
st

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180    200 m

Digimap
© Crown Copyright and Database Right 2014. Ordnance Survey (Digimap Licence). FOR EDUCATIONAL USE ONLY.

P
age 72



 

N

e

w

 

Z

i

g

z

a

g

 

p

a

t

h

(

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

)

C

A

N

Y

N

G

E

 

R

O

A

D

Jubilee

  Oak

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

10m

S

N

EW

DRINKING

FOUNTAIN

Coronation

     Oak

B

R

I
D

G

E

 
V

A

L

L

E

Y

 
R

O

A

D

B

R

I

D

G

E

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

L

A

D

I

E

S

 

M

I

L

E

C

L

I
F

T

O

N

 
 
D

O

W

N

T

H

E

 

P

R

O

M

E

N

A

D

E

E
x
is

tin
g
 fo

o
tp

a
th

20m 30m 40m 50m

  0

10m

20m 30m 40m 50m

  0

5

5

6

1

6

2

5

4

5

5

5

6

5

7

5

8

5

9

6

0

6

1

6

2

6

3

6

4

6

5

6

6

6

7

6

8

6

9

5

6

5

7

5

8

5

9

6

0

6

1

6

2

6

3

6

4

6

5

6

6

6

7

6

8

6

9

7

0

7

1

7

2

5

5

5

6

5

7

5

8

5

9

6

0

6

3

6

5

P

r

o

p

o

s

e

d

 

B

r

i

d

g

e

Meeting space

Footpath

Barrier

Barrier

Ramp, cycle lane

F

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

C

y

c

l

e

 

l

a

n

e

6

4

6

6

C

L

I

F

T

O

N

 

 

D

O

W

N

Bench

Scale:

1:500

Drawing No.:

20-01

Date:

1 March 2016

Drawing title:

Proposed bridge

with circular ramp

Project name:

Bridge over

Bridge Valley Road

Designed by:

Dr Adrienn Tomor

Legend

P
age 73



45m

14m14m14m

5.7m

New Zigzag path

BRIDGE VALLEY ROAD

C

E

E

C

A

A

B

B

D

D

1000mm

1100mm

5000mm

400mm

SECTION B-B

Soil

     Bonded masonry

(Haunching)

Cut stone

Bonded gravel

Road surfacing

Spread stone foundation

1400mm

3300mm

1100mm

2750mm

250mm 250mm

1000mm

1100mm

5000mm

400mm

SECTION C-C

Spread stone foundation

1400mm

4400mm

1100mm

1900mm

250mm 250mm

Top soil

Bedrock

1000mm

1100mm

5000mm

400mm

SECTION D-D

Spread stone foundation

1400mm

1100mm

1500mm

250mm 250mm

Top soil

Bedrock

Springing Springing

Top soil

Bedrock

Springing

1000mm

1100mm

5000mm

400mm

SECTION A-A

Spread stone foundation

1400mm

1100mm

2400mm

250mm 250mm

Springing

Top soil

1100mm

5000mm

400mm

SECTION E-E

250mm

Bedrock

600mm

250mm

E

E

E

E

600mm

Pedestrian lane (2.0m)

Cycle lane (2.5m)

5m 5.5m

0 5m 10m

Reservation lane (0.5m)

Scale:

1:250

Drawing No.:

50-01

Date:

1 March 2016

Drawing title:

Sections 1

Project name:

Bridge over

Bridge Valley Road

Designed by:

Dr Adrienn Tomor

Legend

P
age 74



S

I

T

E

 

B

S

I

T

E

 

A

E

x
i
s
t
i
n

g

 
f
o

o

t
p

a

t
h

C

L

I
F

T

O

N

 
 
D

O

W

N

          P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

F
o
o
tp

a
th

 &
 C

y
c
le

p
a
th

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P

r

o

p

o

s

e

d

F

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

 

&

 

C

y

c

l
e

p

a

t

h

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 B

r
id

g
e

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
o
t
p
a
t
h

P

r

o

p

o

s

e

d

 
F

o

o

t
p

a

t
h

 
&

 
C

y

c

l
e

p

a

t
h

E

x

i
s

t
i
n

g

 
f
o

o

t
p

a

t
h

B

R

I

D

G

E

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

B

R

I
D

G

E

 
V

A

L

L

E

Y

 
R

O

A

D

C

L

I

F

T

O

N

 

 

D

O

W

N

T

H

E

 

P

R

O

M

E

N

A

D

E

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

M

e

e

t

i

n

g

 

s

p

a

c

e

 

 

 

R

a

m

p

,

C

y

c

l

e

p

a

t

h

F

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

B

a

r

r

i

e

r

B

a

r

r

i

e

r

Works area,site facilities,

storage

Tree protection

Access routes, deliveries

0608

0609

0610

0611

0612

0613

0
6
1
4

0
6
1
5

0
6
1
6

0
6
1
7

0
6
1
8

0
6
1
9

0
6
2
0

0
6
2
1

0
6
2
2

0
6
2
3

0
6
2
4

0
6
2
5

0
6
2
6

0
6
2
7

0
6
2
8

0629

0630

0631

0632

0633

0634

0635

0636

0637

0638

0685

0639

0640

0641

0642

0687

0643

0644

0645

0646

0647

0648

0649

0650

0691

0651

0652

0653

0654

0693

0655

0656

0694

0657

0658

0659

0660

0661

0662

0663

0664

0665

0666

0667

0668

0669

0670

0671

0672

0673

0674

0675

0676

0677

0678

0679

0680

0681

0682

0683

0684

0686

0688

0689

0690

0692

0695

0696

0697

0698

0699

0700

0701

5m 10m

627A

627B

W01

W01

682A

682B

Tree Protection Plan

Bridge Valley Road, Clifton

150305-BVR-TPP-AM

BS5837:2012 - Tree Category

Symbol Guide

13

Project Name:

Drawing Title:

Drawing Number:

Root Protection Area

Canopy Spread
Tree Position,
(colour represents
retention category)
Tag Number

Category A Trees
High Quality

Category B Trees
Moderate Quality

Category U Trees
Poor Quality/Remove

Category C Trees
Low Quality

Client:

March 2015

1-250@A1

-

Dr Adrienn Tomor

Agent:

Date:

Scale:

NOTE:
All trees other than 0609 & 0634
have approximate locations

Proposed Tree for
Removal

Line of Protective
Fencing

Ground Protection
Cellular Confinement
System

P
age 75



 
 

Bridge over Bridge Valley Road  
Planning application  

 
Views  

P
age 76



View 1 

P
age 77



P
age 78



View 2 

P
age 79



View 3 

P
age 80



View 4 

P
age 81



View 5 

P
age 82



View 6 

P
age 83



View 7 

P
age 84



View 8 

P
age 85



View 9 

P
age 86



View 10 

P
age 87



View 11 

P
age 88



View 12 

P
age 89



View 13 

P
age 90



View 14 

P
age 91



View 15 

P
age 92



View 16 

P
age 93



09/12/16  10:12   Committee report 

 

Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
 

 
ITEM NO.  3 
 

 
WARD: Cotham CONTACT OFFICER: Angelo Calabrese 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
8 & 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
16/02046/F 
 

 
Full Planning 

EXPIRY DATE: 5 August 2016 
 

Works to ground floor to create a store and wc for existing retail unit and conversion of part ground 
and basement to a C3 residential dwelling with associated external alterations, car and cycle 
parking and refuse storage. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Grant subject to Condition(s) 

 
AGENT: 

 
Aspect360 Ltd 
45 Oakfield Road 
Clifton 
Bristol 
BS8 2AX 
 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Mr & Mrs Cowles & Mr Budding 
C/o Agent 
 

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

 
 

DO NOT SCALE 

Page 94

Agenda Item 7c



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

    
BACKGROUND 
 
The application has been referred to committee by Cllr Negus (referral attached). The Councillor 
considers that the present application reflects a poor quality scheme in an already densely occupied 
area and would compromise a viable shop unit. 
 
The ground floor of the building has been under enforcement investigation since 2014 following the 
conversion of part of the ground floor into residential use as a HMO with 4 bedrooms.  
 
During the assessment of a previous application (which was withdrawn) officers advised the applicant 
that the unauthorised development was unacceptable and changes were required to address the loss 
of retail floor space and the type of residential accommodation proposed (C3 use instead of C4 HMO). 
This revised scheme is now in front of members for their consideration.  
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site is a 3 storey property located on the junction of Chandos Road with Cowper 
Road. The ground floor is occupied as a flooring retail shop, with the rear section of the ground floor 
and the basement converted into a small HMO (4 bedrooms). This was carried out without planning 
permission. 
 
The site is located in a designated centre and within the Cotham and Redland Conservation Area. 
The area is also covered by an Article 4 restricting conversion of homes into HMOs. 
 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
14/30560/DEM- Demolition of wall and garage. Enforcement investigation- Consent not required for 
the works. No Further Action (NFA). 
 
14/30602/COU- Change of use from retail to residential. Enforcement investigation - applicant advised 
to submit application. Case closed. 
 
15/30394/COU-Change of use and conversion of basement and part of ground floor from use ancillary 
to the commercial premises to residential in the form of a Class C4 (small HMO) unit. Enforcement 
investigation-Planning application now submitted to regularise unauthorised works. This case is 
pending the outcome of this appeal. 
 
16/00374/F-Change of use of property from mixed storage/ancillary office use to a 4-bed House in 
Multiple Occupation (Use Class C4) (retrospective) with associated car and cycle parking, and refuse 
storage. Withdrawn following officers objections to the creation of a HMO, small size of retail unit, and 
the poor quality living environment. 
 
 
APPLICATION 
 
This application is a retrospective application following an enforcement investigation which was 
commenced in May 2014 and further to discussions between officers and the applicant during the 
assessment of the pervious withdrawn application (mentioned in relevant history section above).  
 
Permission is sought to retain the residential conversion to the ground floor and basement, but 
change the use class from a small HMO (C4) to a C3 residential dwelling house. 
 

Page 95



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

During the assessment of the application officers have sought and secured the following changes: 
 
-Use of the front room of the basement for additional retail floorspace or storage space related to the 
ground floor shop. 
 
-Living room instead of a bedroom to the large room at ground floor level which has a bay window.  
 
The applicant was also requested to correct the site plan so it matched the submitted redline plan. 
 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 
Neighbours were consulted by letter on two occasions. A site notice was also issued. A total of 27 
comments were submitted. The following points were made: 
 
First round of consultation- 
 
Redland Cotham Amenity Society raised the following points-   
Kitchen/dining room has no outlook or natural light 
Living standards would not be acceptable 
No external amenity space. 
Location of bins- Emptying bins would be difficult. 
Pleased to see refuse storage for neighbouring business. 
Please to see reinstatement of wall and planting along Cowper Road. 
 
Action for Balanced Communities raised the following issues- 
 
Poor living environment. 
Would only attract short term sharing or student lets. 
High concentration of HMOs. 
 
Other representations- 
 
Principle (Key issue A)- 
 
Redland does not need more properties. 
High level of HMO in area 
Retail use - 
Limited storage area 
Waste storage for neighbouring business should not take place on the site. (Officer note- This is an 
ongoing practice to address an issue with the neighbouring business formerly storing waste on the 
highway). 
No provision for the storage of waste for the shop. 
Loss of floorspace reduces viability of the unit. 
 
Living environment (Key issue B)- 
 
Little natural light to the front basement. 
Basement room does not meet building regulation standards. 
Inadequate refuse storage. 
No amenity space. 
 
Transport (Key issue E)- 
 
Inadequate cycle storage. 

Page 96



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

Car parking should not be part of the scheme 
 
Other issues- 
 
Development  started without permission 
Discrepancies on plans. 
Loss of access to rear of 10 Chandos Road. 
 
Cllr Negus has raised issues with the building work being carried out without planning permission, 
and the development compromising the viability of the retail unit. He also has concerns with the delay 
in submitting planning applications and the lack of enforcement action.  He considers 'Residential 
accommodation should be to a reasonable standard. This is an exploitative application which flies in 
the face of the need for balanced communities in this area under great pressure. It shoehorns into too 
small a space very cramped and unsuitable accommodation while destroying the viability of the shop 
in a precarious yet protected area.' 
 
During the second round of consultation, 6 objections were submitted: 
 
Landlord ignored planning guidelines.  
Living room is not large enough 
Area is already at high density- noise and disturbance issues from occupiers. 
Introduction of the staircase to retail unit reduces the floorspace at ground floor level. 
No marketing has been carried out to demonstrate that there is no demand for the retail floorspace. 
 
 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012 
Bristol Local Plan 
Comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocation and Development Management 
Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan (Adopted March 2015) 
and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development Plan 2015.  
 
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of 
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance. 
 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
(A)       IS THE PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE? 
 
Retail use- 
 
The development has resulted in the loss of retail floorspace to a unit which is located in a designated 
centre. Policy DM9 requires development that results in a reduction of retail floorspace to demonstrate 
that it will not be detrimental to the continued viability of the retail unit. 
 
During the assessment of the application officers have raised concerns that the reduced floorspace 
available for the retail use would restrict the ongoing viability and attractiveness of the unit. While at 
present the space is occupied as an expansion of the neighbouring business, in the future they may 
vacate the premises and the small size of the retail unit would be restrictive to potential buyers. To 
address this the plans have been revised to convert the large room to the front of the basement back 
into retail use. 
 

Page 97



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

This revision now results in a retail unit with a floor area of approx. 54 sqm. This is considered to be 
an acceptable size that will allow more flexibility than the current unauthorized floor area. While the 
proposal will result in a reduction in floorspace at ground floor level from what existed prior to the 
unauthorised conversion, the revised plans would ensure that the retail unit would comply with policy 
DM9 and the development will not be detrimental to the continued viability of the retail unit. 
 
Principle of residential development.- 
 
The unauthorised works are currently being occupied as a small HMO. During the assessment of the 
previous application which was withdrawn, officers raised concerns with the concentration of HMOs in 
the area. This subsequent application now proposes to change the use of the residential unit to a 'C3' 
dwelling house. A further 'C3 use' in a residential area is acceptable in principle and would add to the 
housing stock in the City. 
 
(B) WOULD THE PROPOSAL PROVIDE A SUITABLE LIVING ENVIRONMENT FOR FUTURE 

OCCUPIERS? 
 
As originally submitted the application proposed a dwelling which would have had a restricted outlook 
and light into a proposed basement dining room and also a separate small living room. This was 
deemed unacceptable living accommodation and the applicant was requested to alter the layout to 
improve the outlook from the basement level. 
 
The revised plans have reduced the size of residential floorspace and the scheme now proposes a 2 
bedroom unit instead of 3 bedrooms. The basement room which had no outlook and limited natural 
light is now part of the retail unit, and the main living space will be on the ground floor with a large bay 
window. The main bedroom will be located in the basement level served by the light well. The size of 
the unit meets the minimum space standards for a 2 bedroom 3 person unit. 
 
A number of objections have been received raising issues regarding the lack of any external amenity 
space.  There are a number of residential properties in the locality such as first floor flats etc, that do 
not have any outside space. The lack of outside space does not warrant a refusal of permission and it 
is not considered to be an essential element of providing a high quality living environment. It is also 
noted that the site is a 15 minute walk to the Downs and there are other local parks nearby. 
 
As the unit provides sufficient outlook from all rooms and meets minimum space standards, it is 
considered that the living environment is acceptable. 
 
Refuse storage is provided in a suitable location for the proposed unit. Regarding retail waste, it is 
noted that there is still space within the curtilage for additional retail refuse storage and as is common 
with a number of retail uses, storage can take place within the internal store areas of the shop. This is 
unlikely to be a problem as commercial refuse collections can be more frequent than residential 
collection and ensure that waste will not be left on the highway or would undermine the amenity of the 
proposed residential use. The applicant has advised that the existing use accommodates refuse 
storage within the retail unit. 
 
It is also noted that the rear yard area will also be improved via the inclusion of landscaping and a 
small wall. This will also improve the outlook for future occupiers. 
 
(C) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT HARM THE CHARACTER OR APPEARANCE 

OF THIS PART OF THE REDLAND AND COTHAM CONSERVATION AREA? 
 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that in 
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its 
setting, the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

Page 98



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

The Authority is also required (under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990) to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
or appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 states that when considering the 
impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight 
should be given to the asset's conservation, with any harm or loss requiring clear and convincing 
justification. Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states that significance can be harmed or lost through 
alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development within its setting. Further, Para.133 
states that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of significance 
of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be 
demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that 
outweigh that harm or loss. Finally, Para 134 states that where a development proposal will lead to 
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 
 
Policy BCS22 and DM31 requires development to safeguard or enhance heritage assets such as 
conservation areas. 
 
On reviewing historic street view photos, the site has been in a poor state for over 9 years. The 
physical alterations proposed such as the erection of a low wall and the landscaping will improve the 
visual appearance of the site. The car parking is historic and therefore there are no objections to the 
retention of this. 
 
The proposed solar panels will be located on a modern part of the building and have a small impact 
on the conservation area.  
 
The proposal is considered to preserve the sites contribution to the conservation area. 
 
(D) WOULD THE PROPOSAL UNACCEPTABLY AFFECT THE RESIDENTIAL AMENITY OF 

THE AREA? 
 
A new residential C3 dwelling house would not have an impact on the area. While it will increase the 
number of people within the locality, the level of impact from a 2 bedroom dwelling is insignificant. It 
should be noted that increase in density in location such as this site (which is in a designated centre) 
is supported by local and Government policy. A C3 use would not undermine the amenity of existing 
properties. 
 
(E) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS TRANSPORT 

AND MOVEMENT ISSUES? 
 
The development includes cycle storage for the new dwelling which is policy complaint. The parking 
space shown on the plans is already existing.  
 
The site is in a sustainable location. No issues raised. 
 
(F) DOES THE DEVELOPMENT ADDRESS THE CLIMATE CHANGE POLICIES OF THE CORE 

STRATEGY? 
 
The application includes a short sustainability statement with energy table. This states that CO2 
emissions will be below the minimum requirements of building regulations.  In terms of the energy 
reduction through the use of onsite renewable energy generation, the development proposes solar 
panels on the roof of the single storey annex.  The statement advises that this is the only suitable 
space due to the building being historic and located within a conservation area. As the roof space to 
the annex is small the solar panels will only achieve a 3.9% saving on CO2 emissions. While this is 

Page 99



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

below the minimum 20% promoted by BCS14, the policy does state that exceptions will only be made 
in the case where a development is appropriate and necessary but where it is demonstrated that 
meeting the required standard would not be feasible or viable. In these circumstances erecting panels 
on other parts of the historic building would be more damaging to its historic interests and character. 
The roof of the modern extension is appropriate and therefore the approx. 4% saving is acceptable in 
this instance. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The alterations requested by officers will ensure that the site will continue to provide an appropriate 
size retail unit and also provide a residential unit with appropriate outlook which is not a House in 
multiple Occupation.   A planning condition will be attached to the decision requiring the floorplan to 
be changed within 6 months of the grant of permission to ensure that the scheme is implemented and 
in compliance with the Local Plan. 
 
 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
 
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay?  
 
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a new 
dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of buildings in 
lawful use, are exempt from CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no 
CIL is payable. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED GRANT subject to condition(s) 
 
Pre commencement condition(s) 
 
1. The internal works required for the conversion to a C3 use and the enlargement of the retail 

floorspace shall be carried out within 6 months of the approval of planning permission. The 
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approval and retained thereafter. 

  
 Reason: To address the planning issues and to ensure an acceptable form of development is 

implemented. 
 
2. Prior to the installation of the new wall, solar panels and landscaping, detailed drawings of the 

wall and solar panels and details of the proposed landscaping shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 The planting proposals hereby approved shall be carried out no later than during the first 

planting season following the date when the development hereby permitted is ready for 
occupation or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the council.  All planted 
materials shall be maintained for five years and any trees or plants removed, dying, being 
severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall be replaced 
with others of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted. 

  
 The works shall be carried out within 6 months of approval of the condition and retained 

thereafter. 
  
 Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory. 
 

Page 100



Item no. 3 
Development Control – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/02046/F: 8 And 8B Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE   
 

  

Pre occupation condition(s) 
 
3. Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans 
  
 The C3 use shall not commence until the cycle parking provision shown on the approved plans 

has been completed, and thereafter, be kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of 
cycles only. 

  
 Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking. 
 
4. Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities - Shown on approved 

plans 
  
 The C3 use shall not commence until the refuse store, and area/facilities allocated for storing 

of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved plans have been completed in accordance 
with the approved plans. Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials associated with the 
development shall either be stored within this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved 
plans, or internally within the building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse or 
recycling material shall be stored or placed for collection on the public highway or pavement, 
except on the day of collection. 

  
 Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general 

environment, and prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are 
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials. 

 
List of approved plans 
 
5. List of approved plans and drawings 
  
 The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the 

application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in 
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision. 

 
 PL847/05 Proposed refuse and cycle stores, received  
 Site location plan, received  
 PL847/02C Existing and proposed site plans, received 1 December 2016 
 PL847/03 Existing plans, received  
 PL847/04A Proposed plans, received 5 October 2016 
  
  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

Page 101



Supporting Documents 
 

 
3. 8 & 8B Chandos Road 

 
1. Existing and proposed site plan 
2. Existing plans 
3. Proposed plans 
4. Site photo 
 

Page 102



P
age 103



P
age 104



P
age 105



 

P
age 106



09/12/16  11:09   Committee report 

 

Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
 

 
ITEM NO.  4 
 

 
WARD: 

Westbury-on-Trym & 
Henleaze CONTACT OFFICER: Ken Reid 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
16/04539/F 
 

 
Full Planning 

EXPIRY DATE: 14 October 2016 
 

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement dwelling. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Grant subject to Condition(s) 

 
AGENT: 

 
Alder King Planning Consultants 
Pembroke House 
15 Pembroke Road 
Clifton 
Bristol BS8 3BA 
 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Springer Homes 
C/o Agent 
 

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

  
DO NOT SCALE 

Page 107

Agenda Item 7d



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

    
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is being considered before committee following the number of objections that were 
received including from the local ward member who has formally requested its referral. 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application concerns the grounds of Westerleigh Cottage which is a detached 1930's dwelling 
situated between Cote Drive and Cote House Lane on the northern edge of the Downs. The property 
comprises of a large curtilage measuring approximately 690 square metres. The existing property is 
accessed from Cote Drive and falls within the Downs Conservation Area. 
 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
09/00787/H - Proposed car port and drive alterations. Granted. 
 
16/01878/F - Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement dwelling. This application 
was withdrawn on the advice of the Local Planning Authority following objections on design grounds. 
 
 
APPLICATION 
 
Planning consent is sought to demolish the existing property and construct new four-bedroom 
detached two-storey dwelling. The property would be contemporary in appearance consisting of zinc 
and stone cladding elevations along with self-coloured render in a natural colour, powder coated 
aluminium windows and doors, with a timber interior. 
 
The existing vehicular entrance would remain leading to 3 parking spaces and the inclusion of a car 
port. The large landscaped south facing garden would be retained with bin storage areas. Planting is 
to be incorporated in order to help soften the street scene whilst retaining most of established 
boundary hedging. Since the application was submitted the proposed dwelling has been modified with 
the omission of the first floor terraces and subsequent balustrading. A landscape proposal has also 
been added on the advice of the Local Planning Authority and which includes a planted roof 
specification. Further information has been added to the sustainability statement. There have also 
been details of refuse storage, cycle provision and drainage to the driveway added. 
 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 
Neighbouring properties have been consulted by letter and thorough a site notice about the planning 
application.  15 letters of objection were received to the proposals, which included comments from a 
planning consultant on behalf of the residents. Following revisions to the scheme, neighbours and 
third parties were re-consulted which generated a further 9 letters of objection. Please note that given 
the number of objections the following is a summary of the representations. 
 
- The loss of the cottage which is an important non-designated heritage asset in the conservation area 
is unacceptable 
- The dwelling would constitute an over-development of the site 
- The dwelling would be out of character with the surrounding area, in term of design, materiality, 
scale, style, proportionality and integration 
- The sensitive restoration of the cottage with appropriate extension would be a more suitable 
solution. 

Page 108



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

- The building would not make any positive contribution to the character or appearance of the Downs 
Conservation Area 
- The replacement of the boundary fence by the external wall to Cote Drive will cause overshadowing 
to the garden of 'Savernake'. 
- Inadequate access to the property to the detriment of highway safety 
- Inaccurate plans, including misleading landscape masterplan 
- Concerns about inadequate access for construction traffic 
- Concerns over the details of the foul water drain 
 
Councillor Geoff Gollop (Westbury-on-Trym and Henleaze) wished to refer the application to 
committee stating the proposal was an inappropriate development on the edge of the Downs. It does 
not accord with the style of building in this area and would have a significant visual impact. It is 
therefore important that an application in a location that will affect the visual impact of so many should 
be considered by committee. 
 
 
OTHER COMMENTS 
 
Transport Development Management has commented as follows:- 
 
There is no objection to the proposal subject to the submission of a construction management plan 
given the width of the lane, and solid material (not gravel) to the driveway including a drainage 
channel to prevent water surface run-off onto the lane. Details of cycle storage for up to 3 cycles and 
bin storage are required which can be conditioned. 
 
The area between the nearside carriageway edge from and on both sides of the centre line of the 
access, should be cleared of obstruction to visibility and be no higher than 0.6m above the nearside 
carriageway level. This can be conditioned [The applicant has subsequently revised the plans to 
address the above]. 
 
City Design Group has commented as follows:- 
 
There is no objection to the demolition of Westerleigh Cottage. The current building blends into it 
surroundings and seen as part of the backdrop. As such it has a neutral impact on this part of the 
Downs Conservation Area. 
 
The proposal increases the footprint however the proposal is set further back into the site when 
viewed from The Downs.  The proposed building is designed to takes account of the surrounding 
context, not drawing undue attention to itself when viewed from Downs. This is as a result of the 
layers of soft landscaping which form the foreground of the proposed building as well as revision of 
the design to reduce the eaves height, change of material to a natural pallet and refined detailing. 
 
The revision of the design to reduce the scale of proposal when compared to previous scheme, the 
reinstatement of the hedge along Cote Drive and use of natural materials has improved the way in 
which the proposed development appears along the access routes. 
 
The current plans are considered to be in compliance with the design and conservation related 
planning policies. There is therefore no objection to the proposal. 
 
Arboricultural Team has commented as follows:- 
 
I have conducted a site visit and reviewed the supporting arboricultural documentation. I have no 
objections to the proposed development. Approve subject to a specification for the tree protection 
measures. 
 

Page 109



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012 
 
Bristol Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011) 
BCS9 Green Infrastructure 
BCS10 Transport and Access Improvements 
BCS13 Climate Change 
BCS14 Sustainable Energy 
BCS15 Sustainable Design and Construction 
BCS16 Flood Risk and Water Management 
BCS18 Housing Type 
BCS21 Quality Urban Design 
BCS22 Conservation and the Historic Environment 
 
Bristol Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) 
DM2 Residential sub-divisions, shared and specialist housing 
DM17 Development involving existing green infrastructure 
DM19 Development and nature conservation 
DM23 Transport development management 
DM26 Local character and distinctiveness 
DM27 Layout and form 
DM29 Design of new buildings 
DM31 Heritage assets 
 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
(A)  IS THE PROPOSED LOSS OF BUILDING ACCEPTABLE AND WOULD THE PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT HARM THE CHARACTER OR APPEARANCE OF THIS PART OF THE 
DOWNS CONSERVATION AREA? 

 
Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that when considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be 
given to the asset's conservation with any harm or loss requiring clear justification. Local planning 
policy accords with this with policies BCS21, BCS22, FDM30 and FDM31 relevant. 
 
The area is characterised by a mix of large properties set in modest to large plots against the 
backdrop of open parkland from Avon Gorge and Westbury Road to the west and east with the slopes 
of Clifton and Stoke Bishop to the south and north. Cote Drive is not wholly representative of the 
Conservation Area however its more traditional buildings along with the distinctive character of the 
new dwellings play an important role in the overall visual quality of the locality. Other buildings that 
surround Westerleigh Cottage  and are considered to be of architectural significance include the Chief 
Engineers Grade II listed Lodge to St Monica's Home of Rest situated adjacent to the site, with more 
buildings from St Monica's Home of Rest situated 270 metres north of the site. Cote House, a grade 
II* listed sits 140 metres away from the site. Predominant materials in the area, which the application 
site forms part of include brick, pennant limestone rubble and render with roofs often of slate or tile. 
 
Loss of existing building (Westerleigh Cottage) 
 
None of the above features of interest, other than the enclosing stone walls are pertinent to 
Westerleigh Cottage but the sense of enclosure, screening walls and a tree lined backdrop are 
characteristics. Westerleigh Cottage dates back to 1936 and was known to be built as a gardeners 
cottage associated with the former Robinson Estate. In that respect the property is seen as forming 
part of the formal gardens of the Cote Estate, a backdrop building as opposed to a prominent one. 

Page 110



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

Supporting information provided by both the applicant and consultants on behalf of the objectors 
suggest that the Westerleigh Cottage was likely designed to supplement the larger lodge (Westerleigh 
House) opposite, and is supported by an analysis of the historic maps. 
 
The applicant has provided a Heritage Statement as part of their submission which correctly identifiers 
that Westerleigh Cottage as not being listed and is not located within the curtilage of a listed building, 
historic park or garden. Modern residential development and woodland screens the application 
property from the nearby listed buildings mentioned earlier, preventing any direct inter-visibility. It is 
acknowledged that Westerleigh Cottage has some character of a rustic design and features such as 
the Dutch barn style roof.  It is also partially visible along vantage points including Westbury Road and 
the approach to Cote Drive towards the edge of the Downs. However, overall it is considered to have 
a neutral impact against the backdrop of the edge of the Downs.  It is for these reasons set out above 
that the City Design Group (BCC) raise no objection to the loss of Westerleigh Cottage. 
 
Replacement dwelling and its visual impact 
 
The proposed dwelling would comprise of a larger footprint and be of a contemporary design. This 
has generated strong objection from a number of residents who consider that such a design approach 
is at odds with the surrounding form of development to the detriment of the conservation area.  
 
On considering the proposal the following is concluded. The first floor has been oriented north to 
South reducing the elevation impact when viewed from both Cote Drive and Cote House Lane to the 
south. The proposed main roof ridge would be 1.4 metres below the existing house ridge of 
Westerleigh Cottage. The use of contemporary materials including the zinc seam roof and cladding 
are deemed acceptable in this instance given their neutrality in terms of colour and appearance. It is 
designed to take account of the surrounding context, to be part of the backdrop and not drawing 
undue attention to the proposed dwelling when viewed from Downs. The dwelling in terms of the two 
storey element would be set further back into the site when viewed from the Downs to the east. The 
single storey element facing east would comprise of a green roof helping to further screen the house 
from the Downs. The landscape plan proposes enhancement measures including the reinstatement of 
the hedge along Cote Drive. The orientation of the proposed dwelling and its position on the site in 
contrast to the existing building would open up the site by establishing a vista towards the Downs to 
the benefit of' Savernake' and 'Westerleigh House'. The City Design Group does not object to the 
proposal on the grounds that the dwelling would preserve the quality and character of the 
conservation area. 
 
Therefore it is concluded that the proposed loss of the building is acceptable and the proposed 
dwelling would not harm the character or appearance of this part of the Downs Conservation Area. 
 
(B)  WOULD THE PROPOSAL UNACCEPTABLY AFFECT THE RESIDENTIAL AMENITY OF 

THE AREA? 
 
The site sits in relative isolation with nearest properties at Savernake and Westerleigh House situated 
16 and 19 metres away from the proposed dwelling respectfully. Therefore it is not considered that the 
proposed dwelling would have any adverse impact on neighbouring properties in terms of any 
overbearing or loss of light/overshadowing. In terms of windows, there is no issue with those 
proposed at ground floor level. Most of the main first floor windows would east north-eastwards over 
the grounds of the property. The only other window serving a habitable room (bedroom 4) would face 
the western part of the garden which contains trees and shrubs. Although there are no properties 
directly positioned beyond the western boundary. 
 
Given the above considerations the proposal would not unacceptably affect the residential amenity of 
the area. 
 
  

Page 111



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

(C)  WOULD THE PROPOSED DWELLING CONSITUTE AN ACCEPTABLE ENVIRONMENT 
FOR FUTURE OCCUPIERS? 

 
The proposed dwelling would have a gross internal floorspace in excess of 300 square metres which 
would satisfy the Nationally Described Space Standards for a 4 bedroom/8-person house. All rooms 
benefit from at least one window and the property would comprise of a good sized curtilage in terms 
of amenity space. 
 
(D)       WOULD THE PROPOSAL RESULT IN ANY SINGIFICANT IMPACT ON TREES? 
 
The grounds of the site contain trees in and around the boundary, and the application includes an 
arboricultural report containing a tree survey, arboricultural impact assessment, tree protection plan 
and arboricultural method statement for the trees adjacent to Westerleigh Cottage. The plans show 
that the position of the proposed dwelling would not encroach into the Root Protection Area (RPA) of 
any surveyed trees. On considering the recommendations the Arboricultural officer is satisfied with the 
proposal and raised no objection subject to conditions including that the protection measures are 
adhered to. 
 
(E)  WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS TRANSPORT 

AND MOVEMENT ISSUES? 
 
The proposed dwelling includes parking provision for up to three cars which would be acceptable. The 
proposed property is situated between Cote Drive and Cote House Lane which are both unclassified. 
On considering the proposals the Transport Development Management Team do not raise any 
objection in principle. The proposal would not amount to an additional property being served by the 
lane, although there may be an increase in movements given the size of the replacement dwelling. 
However Transport Development Management have requested the submission of a construction 
management plan given the narrow width of respective lanes and to ensure that the applicant has 
clearly explored how works would occur without compromising highway safety. The applicant has 
amended the plans to include a solid surface material to the drive and drainage which is now 
satisfactory. Cycle and refuse storage has also been added following revisions to the plans and which 
are acceptable. 
 
In conclusion the proposed development would satisfactorily address transport and movement issues. 
 
(F)  DOES THE PROPOSAL SATISFACTORILY MEET THE CITY'S POLICY OBJECTIVES WITH 

REGARD TO SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE? 
 
Current planning policy within the adopted Bristol Development Framework Core Strategy requires 
new development to be designed to mitigate and adapt to climate change and meet targets to reduce 
carbon dioxide emissions.  This should be achieved, amongst other measures, through efficient 
building design, the provision of on-site renewable energy generation to reduce carbon dioxide 
emissions by at least 20% based on the projected residual energy demand of new buildings and 
extensions to existing buildings, and for new development to mitigate against the risk of flooding, 
including rainwater soak-away drainage.  The approach proposed should also be supported by the 
provision of a sustainability statement and an energy strategy.   
 
The application is supported by a sustainability and energy statement explaining how the proposed 
development would comply with policies BCS13 to BCS15. It is claimed that the proposed building 
materials would exceed values in all areas, whilst the orientation and design of the property would 
maximise use of natural sunlight and heat. On site renewable energy generation is prosed in the form 
of air source heat pumps and photovoltaic panels to the roof although no details are given in the 
plans. Although these can be conditioned to ensure they are implemented. These measures would be 
adequate to reduce CO2 emissions from the residual energy demand of the dwelling by 20%, in 
accordance with current policy requirements. 

Page 112



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

The application site is set within flood zone 1 and as such is at low risk from tidal and fluvial flooding.  
The provision of a new building and associated hardstanding at the cost of some existing soft 
landscaping is such that appropriate mitigation is required in relation to increased rainwater run-off.  
This can be secured by condition requiring the provision of a scheme of sustainable drainage relating 
to rainwater run-off captured by the new roofs, as well as permeable paving to all new external paved 
surfaces. 
 
Provided the measures are secured as part of consent the proposal would satisfactorily meet the city's 
policy objectives with regard to sustainability and climate change. 
 
 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
 
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay? 
 
The CIL liability for this development is £19520.79 
 
 
RECOMMENDED GRANT subject to condition(s) 
 
Time limit for commencement of development 
 
1. Full Planning Permission 
  
 The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended 

by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Pre commencement condition(s) 
 
2. Construction management plan 
  
 No development shall take place including any works of demolition until a construction 

management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and been 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved plan/statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period.  The statement shall provide for: 

  
 Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors 
 routes for construction traffic 
 hours of operation 
 method of prevention of mud being carried onto highway 
 pedestrian and cyclist protection 
 proposed temporary traffic restrictions 
 arrangements for turning vehicles 
  
 Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the highway in the lead into development both 

during the demolition and construction phase of the development. 
 
3. Sample panels before specified elements started 
  
 Sample panels of all external materials demonstrating the colour, texture, face bond and 

pointing are to be erected on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

Page 113



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

before the relevant parts of the work are commenced. The development shall be completed in 
accordance with the approved details before the building is occupied. 

  
 Reason: In order that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and that the 

character and appearance of this part of the Downs Conservation Area is preserved. 
 
4. Further details of refuse and cycle store before relevant element started 
  
 Detailed drawings at the scale of 1:50 of the following shall be submitted to and be approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of work is begun. The detail 
thereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with that approval. 

  
 a) refuse/recycling enclosure 
 b) Cycle storage 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, the visual amenity and the character of the area. 
 
5. Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) 
  
 The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy 

and associated detailed design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage 
for the site using SuDS methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with 
the approved Sustainable Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and 
maintained thereafter for the lifetime of the development. 

  
 Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory 

means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the 
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the 
lifetime of the proposal. 

 
6. Protection of retained tree during the construction period 
  
 No work of any kind shall take place on the site until the protective fencing shown on drawing 

number 160318-WC-TPP-AM has been erected around the retained trees. The Local Planning 
Authority shall be given not less than two weeks prior written notice by the developer of the 
commencement of works on the site in order that the council may verify in writing that the 
approved tree protection measures are in place when the work commences. The approved 
fence(s) shall be in place before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the 
site for the purposes of the development and shall be maintained until all equipment, 
machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Within the fenced area(s) 
there shall be no scaffolding, no stockpiling of any materials or soil, no machinery or other 
equipment parked or operated, no traffic over the root system, no changes to the soil level, no 
excavation of trenches, no site huts, no fires lit, no dumping of toxic chemicals and no retained 
trees shall be used for winching purposes. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of 
such size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the 
council. 

  
 Reason: To protect the retained trees from damage during construction and in recognition of 

the contribution which the retained tree gives and will continue to give to the amenity of the 
area. 

 
  

Page 114



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

7. Specification to driveway 
  
 No development shall commence until a specification setting out the ground construction for 

the proposed driveway within the root protection area (RPA) of T1, has been submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The specification shall include calculations 
of the proposed weight of vehicles that will be using this area and the thickness of cellular 
confinement to be employed. The work shall be carried out in accordance with the details of 
the specification and be supervised by a qualified arboricultural consultant. 

  
 Reason: To protect the retained tree from damage during construction and in recognition of the 

contribution which the retained tree gives and will continue to give to the amenity of the area. 
 
Pre occupation condition(s) 
 
8. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 
  
 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development, it must be reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation 
and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11', and where 
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which ensures the site will 
not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in 
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 

  
 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 

report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  

  
 Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

  
9. Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities - Shown on approved 

plans 
  
 No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the refuse 

store, and area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the 
approved plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all 
refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be stored within 
this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the building(s) 
that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored or placed 
for collection on the public highway or pavement, except on the day of collection. 

  
 Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general 

environment, and prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are 
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials. 

 
10. Visibility Splays 
  
 Prior to the access being brought into use, the area between the nearside carriageway edge 

and lines drawn between a point 2.4m back from the carriageway edge along the centre line of 
the access and points on the carriageway edge from and on both sides of the centre line of the 
access, shall be cleared of obstruction to visibility at and above a height of 0.6m above the 
nearside carriageway level, and thereafter maintained free of obstruction at all times. 

Page 115



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

  Reason: In the interests of highway safety 
 
11. Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on approved plans 
  
 No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the 

car/vehicle parking area shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, 
the area shall be kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles associated 
with the development 

  
 Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development. 
 
12. Renewable energy, further details required  
  
 Prior to implementation, details of the proposed photovoltaic panels and air source heat pumps 

(including the exact location, dimensions, design/ technical specification) together with 
calculation of energy generation and associated C02 emissions to achieve 20% reduction on 
residual emissions from renewable energy in line with the approved energy statement should 
be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The renewable 
energy technology shall be installed in full accordance with the approved details prior to first 
occupation of the development and thereafter retained. 

                                                                             
 Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate 

change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions and in the interest of visual 
amenity. 

 
Post occupation management 
 
13. Energy and Sustainability in accordance with statement: 
  
 The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures, 

renewable energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into 
the design and construction of the development in full accordance with the Energy Statement 
(New Dwelling, Westerleigh) received 19th August 2016 prior to first occupation. A total 20% 
reduction in carbon dioxide emissions beyond Part L 2013 Building Regulations in line with the 
energy hierarchy shall be achieved, and a 20% reduction/or other agreed % reduction in 
carbon dioxide emissions below residual emissions through renewable technologies shall be 
achieved 

  
 Reason: To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and 

can adapt to a changing climate in accordance with policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BC14 
(sustainable energy), BCS15 (Sustainable design and construction), DM29 (Design of new 
buildings) 

  
14. No further extensions 
  
 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no 
extension or enlargement (including additions to roofs) shall be made to the dwellinghouse(s) 
hereby permitted, or any detached building erected, without the express permission in writing 
of the council. 

  
 Reason: The further extension of this (these) dwelling(s) or erection of detached building 

requires detailed consideration to safeguard the amenities of the surrounding area. 
 
  

Page 116



Item no. 4 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04539/F: Westerleigh Cottage Cote Drive Bristol BS9 3UP  
 

9-Dec-16  

15. Hard and soft landscape works - shown 
  
 The landscaping proposals hereby approved shall be carried out no later than during the first 

planting season following the date when the development hereby permitted is ready for 
occupation or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.  All planted materials shall be maintained for five years and any trees or plants 
removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years of 
planting shall be replaced with others of similar size and species to those originally required to 
be planted. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory. 
 
List of approved plans 
 
16. List of approved plans and drawings 
  
 The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the 

application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in 
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision. 

 
1537-01 Location plan, received 19 August 2016 

 1537-02 Site plan as existing, received 19 August 2016 
 1537-03 Floor plans and elevations as existing, received 19 August 2016 
 1537-07B Proposed floor plans, received 8 December 2016 
 1537-08A Elevations as proposed, received 14 October 2016 
 1537-09A Block plan as proposed, received 14 October 2016 
 Sustainability and energy statement, received 19 August 2016 
 P0238 D Landscape Masterplan, received 8 December 2016 
  
  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 

Advices 
 
1. Note PV design guidance: 
  
 The applicant is reminded that evidence that the PV design has been approved by an MCS 

(Microgeneration Certification Scheme) accredited installer to ensure shading is taken into 
account within the energy generation calculations should be submitted within energy 
statements and PV details. 

Page 117



Supporting Documents 
 

 
4. Westerleigh Cottage, Cote Drive 

 
1. Existing site plan 
2. Site photographs 
3. Proposed site plan 
4. Proposed elevations 
 

Page 118



This drawing is the copyright © property of Stopher Design Partnership Ltd.

Site plan as existing.

1537-02.
Westerleigh Cottage, Cote Drive, Stoke 
Bishop, Bristol. BS9 3UP

Scale: 1:100 @ A1.                    Date: 07/16.

Planning Issue.

T01

T03

P
age 119



Site photographs 

 

 

Page 120



 

 

Page 121



 

Page 122



This drawing is the copyright © property of Stopher Design Partnership Ltd.

Floor plans as proposed.

1537-07B.
Westerleigh Cottage, Cote Drive, 
Stoke Bishop, Bristol. BS9 3UP.

Scale: 1:100 @ A1.                    Date: 07/16.

Rev A.    Oct 16.    Window added to NE elevation.
                              1st fl terrace's omitted.

Rev B.    Dec 16.    Bin store & bike storage added.
                               Drive material amended.
                               Hedge ht. to entrance added.

Study

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Bike 
Storage

coats

Outline of existing building to be demolished

Dining

Existing mature 
hedge

Hedge managed to retain existing visibility

Existing mature 
hedge

New planting to be managed at 
0.6m high to provide visibility

Altered vehicular access and gate

DRIVE

Granite sett apron with integral 
linear drain to accommodate 
surface water run off from drive.

Bin 
Store

New planting

New hedgerow and planting to border 
as Amalgan Landscape's landscape 
Masterplan drawing P0238.

Planted roof

Bed 4

Ensuite

Wr

Wr

Wr

Wr

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

3250 sq ft inc garage

T04

T05

T06

T01

T02

T03
Tarmac

For further information regarding 
tree works & landscaping, please 
refer to Branch Walkers Tree 
Services Arboricultural Report & 
Amalgan Landscape's landscape 
Masterplan drawing P0238.

Tree root protection areas

Tree root protection areas

LAWN

Car Port
Plant/boot

room

Lobby Living

Kitchen
Laundry

Planted roof

Bed 1

Bed 2

Bed 3

Bathroom

Landing

Ensuite

Li
ne
n

P
age 123



Elevations as proposed.

1537-08A.
Westerleigh Cottage, Cote Drive, 
Stoke Bishop, Bristol. BS9 3UP.

Scale: 1:100 @ A1.                    Date: 07/16.

This drawing is the copyright © property of Stopher Design Partnership Ltd.

Existing stone wall

COTE HOUSE LANE

Dining

78.0

79.0

80.0

87.0

86.0

85.0

84.0

83.0

82.0

81.0

Line of existing mature 
hedge to Cote Drive

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

Existing stone wall

COTE HOUSE LANE

78.0

79.0

80.0

87.0

86.0

85.0

84.0

83.0

82.0

81.0

Line of existing mature 
hedge to Cote Drive

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

Outline of existing building to 
be demolished shown dashed.

COTE DRIVE

Line of existing mature hedge 
to Cote Drive

Altered vehicular access and gate

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

MAIN ROOF.
Zinc roof with standing seam with hidden rainwater channel.
WALLS & GABLE.
Zinc overlapping panels, painted float finish smooth render and Natural stone, render 
colour to be advised.
WINDOWS.
Powder coated aluminium externally, timber internally, colour to be advised.
BALUSTRADE.
Frameless glass
RAINWATER GOODS.
Hoppers and downpipes to be galvanised aluminium.

78.0

79.0

80.0

87.0

86.0

85.0

84.0

83.0

82.0

81.0
Existing stone wall

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

COTE HOUSE LANE

Outline of existing building to 
be demolished shown dashed.

Entrance COTE DRIVE

Line of existing mature 
hedge to Cote Drive

RIDGE & HIP DETAIL 1:20 BOXED GUTTER DETAIL 1:20 WALL PANEL DETAIL 1:20 CORNER DETAIL 1:20

VMZ Standing Seam in VMZINC® PLUS VMZ 200 Overlapping panels

MATERIALS & DETAILS

Painted render

Painted render

Vertical boarded western red 
cedar entrance gate

Rev A.    Oct 16.    Window added to NE elevation.
                               Amended gutter detail.
                              1st fl terrace and balustrade omitted.

New hedgerow and planting to border 
as Amalgan Landscape's landscape 
Masterplan drawing P0238.

VMZ Standing Seam in VMZINC® PLUS

Gutter outside the 
wall, ventilation inlet 
through soffit

VMZ 200 Overlapping panels

VMZ 200 Overlapping panels

Wall cladding

P
age 124



09/12/16  10:03   Committee report 

 

Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
 

 
ITEM NO.  5 
 

 
WARD: Brislington West CONTACT OFFICER: Kevin Morley 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW   
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
16/04684/H 
 

 
Full Planning (Householders) 

EXPIRY DATE: 15 November 2016 
 

Proposed double garage and granny annexe following demolition of existing double garage. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Grant subject to Condition(s) 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Ms Jocelyn Clark 
2 Callington Road 
Brislington 
Bristol 
BS4 5BW 
 

  

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

  
DO NOT SCALE 

Page 125

Agenda Item 7e



Item no. 5 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04684/H: 2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW   
 

  

    
SUMMARY 
 
The application is made for the demolition of an existing garage and the erection of a residential 
annexe building with integral double garage, all ancillary to the main dwelling house.  The application 
is before members as the Applicant is a current councillor and as a result of consultation the 
proposals resulted in an objection from a near neighbour.  Some further plans and amendments have 
been submitted and the proposed development is considered to be acceptable and is recommended 
to the committee for approval. 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site is No.2 Callington Road, a two-storey semi-detached dwelling with front and rear 
gardens.  A lane (adopted highway) runs to the eastern side of the property linking Callington Road to 
Runnymead Avenue and some existing backland residential properties, one of which adjoins the 
northern boundary of No.2.  The commercial A4 Bath Road lies close to the east but the area is 
considered to be predominantly residential in character. 
 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
Pre-application ref.16/01378/PREAPP was made for the current annexe proposal prior to this formal 
submission.  The response, dated 24.05.2016, noted that residential amenity would be a key 
consideration and that single-storey development should be considered. 
 
 
APPLICATION 
 
The application proposes the erection of a detached building with a footprint of approximately 81sq.m, 
with a gable roof with eaves at approx. 2.4m and ridge at 5.4m above adjacent ground level.  The 
building would also contain a double garage (some of which is roofed with a flat roof) and the annexe 
accommodation.  A bedroom and bathroom is contained within the roof space facilitated by roof 
dormer windows.  The accommodation is accessed from within the rear garden of No.2 itself and is 
intended for a family member and is designed to be adaptable should the occupant require ground 
floor accommodation only.  The proposals include hard and soft landscaping, including two 
replacement trees within the back garden.  See the attached plans for full details. 
 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation letters were sent to 11no. nearby properties.  As a result the adjoining neighbour raised 
a number of concerns, which are summarised as: 
 
Sense of enclosure, 
Loss of privacy, and 
Not an annexe but a two-storey house. 
 
The above points will be covered in the Key Issues of the report.  Other issues raised, but not material 
considerations in this instance, related to drainage/waste matters and party wall issues and loss of 
property value.  The neighbour is also concerned about potential for damage to trees and shrubs 
along the shared boundary, which is another civil matter between the parties.  However, the Applicant 
has confirmed that they are working with their architect to find a suitable foundation design to 
minimise any disruption to the established planting. 
 

Page 126



Item no. 5 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04684/H: 2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW   
 

  

The additional plans and amended proposals were sent to the same neighbour for further comment, 
and at the time of writing the neighbour had requested additional time to respond, which was given 
and the results of which will be reported in the committee amendment sheet. 
 
 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012 
Bristol Local Plan 
Comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocation and Development Management 
Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan (Adopted March 2015) 
and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development Plan 2015.  
 
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of 
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance. 
 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
(A)       IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN PRINCIPLE? 
 
The proposed development is for ancillary accommodation for the main residence that is No.2 
Callington Road.  The annexe is intended for occupation by a member of the household, and the 
building would essentially be a detached extension of the living accommodation of No.2.  The 
proposal is not for an autonomous self-contained dwelling house, which would need separate 
planning permission in its own right.  However, to aid enforcement, should the issue arise, and to 
explicitly define the use of the annexe within any planning consent; a suitably worded condition can be 
added to the permission. 
 
As with most householder-style applications; the size of the proposed accommodation is constrained 
by the site's context and amenity relationships with neighbours, which are assessed below, but the 
proposed development is acceptable in principle. 
 
(B)       DOES THE PROPOSAL RAISE ANY RESIDENTIAL AMENITY ISSUES? 
 
The proposed annexe is located at the northern end of No.2 Callington Road's rear garden and the 
adjoining neighbour, No.4, therefore no unacceptable levels of overshadowing/loss of light would 
occur to either property or their associated gardens.  No.14B West Town Lane adjoins the northern 
boundary of the site and as such the proposed building is reduced in scale in this location (one of the 
garage spaces) to approximately 2.5m in height, to reduce any significant overshadowing of the side 
of No.14B, which is also considered acceptable.   
 
The annexe is proposed with a 20m separation distance from the rear of the host property, No.2, 
which ensures that both the main house and the south end of the annexe have a good outlook over 
the back garden of No.2.  Similarly, the annexe would be located at least 16m away from the closest 
point of the neighbour's house; a rear conservatory.  Given this separation distance and the 
established boundary hedge between the properties, intervening garden trees (to be replaced) and 
pitched-roof design of the annexe; it is considered that proposal would not result in any unacceptable 
overbearing impact on the outlook and garden areas of the adjoining neighbours to justify refusal. 
 
The east-facing dormer windows overlooking the lane do not result in any loss of privacy and add 
some welcomed natural surveillance over the narrow adopted thoroughfare.  The amended scheme 
includes obscurely glazed and non-opening first floor windows within the north and south end 
elevations (serving a landing and bathroom), which would be conditioned as such with any permission 
to protect privacy.  The rooflights within the western roof slope provide light down to the ground floor, 

Page 127



Item no. 5 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04684/H: 2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW   
 

  

as shown in the section drawing on plan ref.1601.2, and do not provide outlook for the bedroom within 
the roof space; therefore ensuring the privacy of the adjoining garden of No.4 Callington Road.   
 
Subject to restrictive conditions relating to windows; the proposal does not raise any unacceptable 
residential amenity issues. 
 
(C)       IS THE PROPOSAL VISUALLY ACCEPTABLE? 
 
The proposed building is domestic in design and incorporates a pitched roof, which is commonplace 
in this location and similar to that of the property located to the north, which the annexe will be viewed 
against from the lane.  The appearance and proposed materials are also acceptable. 
 
The overall scale and footprint of the proposed annexe is comparatively large for a garden building.  
However, it is accepted that the annexe remains subservient to No.2 Callington Road and given the 
presence of the detached bungalow (14B West Town Lane) adjacent to the northern border of the site 
and the two properties to the northwest (1 & 2 West Town Court); the annexe is not counter to the 
pattern of development in this backland location.  Furthermore, the rear garden of No.2 is in excess of 
30m long, therefore the loss of the northern third to the proposed building would not harm the 
suburban character of the area.  Subject to the provision of the hard and soft landscaping shown on 
the proposed plans, including the replacement trees; the proposal is considered to be visually 
acceptable. 
 
(D)       DOES THE PROPOSAL RAISE ANY TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT ISSUES? 
 
The side lane is an adopted highway and is currently used by vehicles and pedestrians for access to 
properties.  There is no objection to the double garage or annexe, subject to the retention of the 
garage/parking spaces for the use of No.2 Callington Road, given the increased amount of 
accommodation on the site.  As such the proposal does not raise any unacceptable transport and 
movement issues. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed annexe is comparatively large, however the context supports this level of development 
and the residential amenity relationships are satisfactory.  The application is therefore recommended 
to the committee for approval subject to the planning conditions mentioned above. 
 
 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
 
How much Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will this development be required to pay? 
 
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a new 
dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of buildings in 
lawful use, are exempt from CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no 
CIL is payable. 
 

Page 128



Item no. 5 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04684/H: 2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW   
 

  

RECOMMENDED GRANT subject to condition(s) 
 
Time limit for commencement of development 
 
1. Full Planning Permission 
  
 The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended 

by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Post occupation management 
 
2. Use Restriction 
  
 The annexe building hereby approved shall be used only as an ancillary use, incidental to the 

enjoyment of the residential property known as 2 Callington Road, and shall not be used for 
any purpose.  Moreover the annexe building shall not at any time in the future be sublet, sold 
or severed in any way from the site subject of this planning permission. 

  
 Reason: Any other use requires further assessment and the development proposed is only 

acceptable because of the ancillary nature of the accommodation and its independent use 
would require careful consideration. 

 
3. Hard and soft landscape works - shown 
   
 The landscaping proposals, including boundary treatments and replacement trees, hereby 

approved (plan refs.1601.1A & 1601.2) shall be carried out no later than during the first 
planting season following the date when the development hereby permitted is ready for 
occupation or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.  All planted materials shall be maintained for five years and any trees or plants 
removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years of 
planting shall be replaced with others of similar size and species to those originally required to 
be planted. 

   
 Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory and to mitigate for 

the loss of existing trees on the site. 
 
4. Non-opening and obscured glazed window 
   
 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) the 
proposed first floor bathroom window within the north elevation, and the first floor landing 
window within the south elevation, shall be non-opening and glazed with obscure glass to a 
specification to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority and shall be permanently 
maintained thereafter as non-opening and obscure glazed. 

   
 Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises from overlooking and loss of 

privacy. 
 

Page 129



Item no. 5 
Development Control Committee B – 21 December 2016 
Application No. 16/04684/H: 2 Callington Road Bristol BS4 5BW   
 

  

5. No Further Windows 
   
 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no 
windows, including rooflights, other than those shown on the approved plans shall at any time 
be placed in the garage/annexe hereby permitted without the grant of a separate planning 
permission from the Local Planning Authority. 

   
 Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises from overlooking and loss of 

privacy. 
 
6. Retention of garage/car parking spaces 
   
 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) the 
garage parking spaces hereby permitted shall be retained as such and shall not be used for 
any purpose other than the garaging of private motor vehicles associated with the residential 
occupation of the property and ancillary domestic storage without the grant of further specific 
planning permission from the Local Planning Authority. 

   
 Reason:  To retain garage/car space for parking purposes. 
 
List of approved plans 
 
7. List of approved plans and drawings 
  
 The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the 

application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in 
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision. 

 
 1601.1A Location plan, received 11 November 2016 
 1601.2 Proposed site plan and typical section, received 11 November 2016 
  
  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 

Page 130



Supporting Documents 
 

 
5. 2 Callington Road 

 
1. Proposed site plan and section 
2. Proposed plans and elevations 
 

Page 131



P
age 132



P
age 133


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Appeals
	APPEALS COMMITTEE

	5 Enforcement
	7 Planning and Development
	7a 15/04217/F - Land to North of Paintworks, BS4 3EH
	RELEVANT POLICIES
	Recommendations GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

	7b 16/01266/F - Land between Ladies Mile and Clifton Down, Bridge Valley Road, BS8
	2 - 16.01266.F - Report to be appended.pdf
	RELEVANT POLICIES
	RECOMMENDED REFUSED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS

	2 - 16.01266.F - Land between Ladies Mile - supporting documents.pdf
	2. Proposed bridge layout.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	BVR 44-2-1Bridge2


	3. Elevations.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	BVR 44-5-1Sections




	7c 16/02046/F - 8 and 8B, Chandos Road, Bristol, BS6 6PE
	RELEVANT POLICIES
	RECOMMENDED GRANT subject to condition(s)

	7d 16/04539/F - Westerleigh Cottage, Cote Drive, Bristol, BS9 3UP
	RELEVANT POLICIES
	RECOMMENDED GRANT subject to condition(s)

	7e 16/04684/H - 2, Callington Road, Bristol, BS4 5BW
	RELEVANT POLICIES
	RECOMMENDED GRANT subject to condition(s)




